
 

 

2012 Annual Conference 

Board Packet 

Table of Contents 

 

Agenda .............................................................................2 

Minutes ............................................................................3 

Director’s Report ..............................................................9 

Budget Report ..................................................................11 

Revised Budget FY 2012 ...................................................16 

Membership Report .........................................................19 

Friends Fundraising Survey Report ..................................21 

ALTAFF in a Nutshell ........................................................22 

ALTAFF Promo Sheet ........................................................23 

Committee Charges and Expectations .............................26 

Committee Roles ..............................................................29 

Parliamentary Procedure Brief Guide ..............................31 

President’s Report to Council ..........................................32 

Sample FOLUSA Ethics Policy ...........................................34 

Board List Through 2016 ..................................................36 

ALTAFF Program Flyer ......................................................37 

ALTAFF Calendar for Annual 2012 ...................................39 

 

1



 

 

Board of Director’s Meeting 
ALA Annual Conference 
Anaheim, California 

Anaheim Convention Center 
Room 212A 

June 24, 2012 – 8:00‐10:00 a.m. 
 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

Welcome – President Donna McDonald          (8:00 – 8:10) 
 
Minutes ‐‐ Rod Wagner            (8:10 – 8:15) 
 
Director’s Report ‐ Sally G. Reed          (8:15 – 8:40) 

 Budget 

 Membership 

 Initiatives 

Approve 2013‐2014 Board Nominees        (8:40‐8:45) 
 
Committee Charges and Expectations – Donna McDonald  (8:45‐8:55) 
    
New Committee Assignments ‐ President‐Elect Gail Griffin     (8:55‐9:05) 
 
Board Promotion – United for Libraries        (9:05‐9:30) 
 
Board Ethics and Responsibilities – Barbara Jones    (9:30‐9:50) 
 
Assign. of Board Ethics Statement TF – Donna McDonald   (9:50‐10:00) 
 
Adjournment              10:00 a.m. 

2



Association of Library Trustees, Advocates, Friends and Foundations 
Midwinter Meeting of the Board of Directors  

 
Dallas, Texas 

January 22, 2012 

 
MINUTES 

 
Board members present:  Kathryn Suarez, Gail Griffin, Susan Schmidt, Gretchen Herman, Steve Laird, 
Rod Gauvin, Virginia Stanley, Peter Pearson, Marsha Bennett, Robin Hoklotubbe, Helen Wilbur, Ed 
McBride, Dora U. Sims, Gwendolyn B. Guster Welch, Rod Wagner, and Donna McDonald. 
 
Staff: Sally G. Reed, Beth Nawalinski. 
 
Visitors: Kathy Spindel, Gayle Graske, Deborah Doyle, Cherine Janzen, Scott P. Muir, Peggy Danhof, 
Cindy Friedemann, Charles D. Hanson, Don Roalkvam, Jane Rowland, Rose E. Mosley, Shirley A. 
Bruursema, Joan Ress Reeves, Ruth Newell 
 
Welcome – President Donna McDonald called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. and welcomed all 
present.  
 
Pat Hogan (ALA Executive Board Liaison) remarks – Pat Hogan referred to the White House petition 
regarding school libraries inclusion in the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) re‐
authorization and urged all to sign. Hogan said that 25,000 signatures are needed to get the petition to 
the President’s desk. Hogan commented on the ALA working group that is addressing digital content 
issues and noted a new American Libraries blog and Transforming Libraries website. Hogan mentioned 
the second ALA virtual meeting scheduled for June 5. She also noted that ALA acquired Neal‐Schuman 
publishing. Donna McDonald thanked Pat Hogan for the ALA executive board update and also urged 
those present to sign the White House petition. 
  
Donna McDonald welcomed and introduced new board members: Gretchen Herman, Steve Laird, 
Virginia Stanley (returning), Marsha Bennett, Dora Sims, and Gwendolyn Guster Welch.  
 
Minutes (June 26, 2011) – It was noted that the minutes did not include the names of visitors present 
including visitors from Birmingham, Alabama. Sally Reed commented that the sign‐in sheet was not 
found.  
 
It was MOVED by Gail Griffin and SECONDED by Peter Pearson to approve the June 26, 2011, board 
meeting minutes. Motion APPROVED with notation that the meeting visitor list was missing and not 
reported.  
 
Director’s Report – Sally Reed distributed committee interest sheets for appointments to be made by 
Gail Griffin.  
 
Sally reported good news – the budget is on track. She said the best news comes from the suggestion 
that library trustees that are members of ALA but not ALTAFF be given complimentary memberships 

3



 
 

with the hopes they would renew. Reed said ALTAFF has a 52% membership retention rate of trustee 
members who were given complimentary memberships and 230 new members. ALTAFF has a 22 
percent membership increase in comparison to ALA’s 3% membership decrease. Reed said ALTAFF has 
the highest membership increase of all ALA divisions (applause!). Sally noted the membership 
challenge of trustees moving on and off boards and in contrast to librarians who join a division and 
remain with that division throughout their career. ALTAFF’s difference is the revolving door for 
trustees. It was suggested by the Budget Analysis & Review Committee (BARC, an Executive Board 
committee) that ALTAFF repeat the complimentary memberships every two or three years (recognizing 
the successful outcome this year). Sally said she believes this is a good idea.  
 
Sally said that “not so great news” is our group membership category. The executive board has made 
an allowance that, for the next two years, groups (boards of trustees or friends) can join without 
having a personal membership. They can’t participate in meetings or be on the board but can receive 
services. This is comparable to the way FOLUSA used to work. The merger resulted in a 40% loss of our 
groups. Sally said she is working with the ALA Chapter Relations Committee and there is a resolution to 
bring new members and groups in with a joint membership. Sally said she is also working with the 
Chief Officers of State Library Agencies (COSLA) to promote memberships for friends groups and 
boards of trustees but also promote ALTAFF webinars – trustee academy and, coming up soon, 
engaging baby boomer volunteers. Sally said that if we change our name to “United for Libraries” we 
will have a better hook for friends groups. Reed said that there are a lot of friends groups and boards 
that won’t participate in ALA meetings but they can and will use the information and services provided 
by ALTAFF. There is potentially a huge voice for libraries.  
 
Sally Reed said the second “not so good news” is that BARC has voted to cap our small division subsidy 
at $56,000 and that the subsidy will go away in FY 2014. FOLUSA didn’t have the ALA overhead 
expenses that ALTAFF now has. On the other side, ALTA (Association of Library Trustees and 
Advocates) had an $85,000 annual subsidy and contributed no revenue to the general fund. ALTAFF is 
penalized with overhead and a lower subsidy and contributes $51,000 to the general fund. ALA has 
benefited from the merger.  
 
Sally said we are headed in the right direction and we’ve made strides toward addressing the deficit.  
 
In response to a question about the variance on corporate contribution revenues, Reed said that those 
revenues are just coming in now and that there is a lag. By June, these revenues will be close to 100%. 
Income from events also lags. In comparison to last year, the division is ahead in revenue and behind in 
expenses. Reduced staff and reduction in rent are significant factors in decreased expenses.  
 
It was suggested that corporate members approach BARC to address budget concerns. It was agreed 
by consensus that corporate members make contact with BARC and that Sally contact corporate 
members after conference to discuss how to make contact with BARC members.  
 
Sally mentioned the webinars for baby boomer volunteers to be released in March. The webinars are 
expected to generate revenue and memberships. The webinars will cost $39 for members and $139 for 
non‐members. The cost variance offers significant advantage to join ALTAFF.   
 

4



 
 

Board Gift Solicitation – Peter Pearson reminded that fund‐raising is a way of life for organizations – a 
necessity for what we do. He said that 75% of philanthropic giving is through individuals. Peter said 
that it is vital that board members make a personal contribution. He said that it is critically important 
that 100% of our board give to ALTAFF before we go out to the rest of the world to seek contributions.  
 
Committee Reports – Donna McDonald requested brief reports from committee chairs.  
 
Nominations – Rose Mosley (chair) reported that the committee met yesterday to consider officer 
candidates. The committee will present their slate at the annual conference.  
 
Legislation, Advocacy, and Intellectual Freedom – Shirley Bruursema (chair) reported that the 
committee met yesterday to put together their program for the annual conference in Anaheim. Their 
program title is “Advocacy – Transforming Libraries through Front Line Advocacy.” Shirley said the 
committee has developed a fantastic program and she encouraged all to attend. Shirley mentioned the 
importance of the advocacy topic, especially at this time, with library budget challenges. The 
committee has started planning for a 2013 program for the Chicago conference with the subject to be 
“Censorship – What to do When the Censors Come Knocking.”  
 
Donna McDonald asked Beth Nawalinski to report on outreach to other divisions regarding programs. 
Beth said that staff is reaching out to other divisions to request that they highlight programs of interest 
to friends and trustees. Beth mentioned a special opportunity arranged through conference services 
for an exhibits plus registration to include the opening and closing sessions and ALTAFF non‐ticketed 
programs.  
 
Leaders Orientation – Peggy Danhof (chair) reported that the committee will meet in the afternoon to 
discuss the program coming up for the annual conference in June. The committee will report later.  
 
Annual Conference Program Committee – Robin Hoklotubbe (chair) reported that the committee met 
yesterday. Nuts & Bolts will be held on Friday, June 22, from 10 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. The committee is 
working on arrangements for a specialized outreach services luncheon that will be held on Saturday. 
Robin said the committee has other activities in the works for a full conference schedule. Dora Sims 
asked if the committee will have any programming for trustees such as a workshop to address 
searching for a director. Robin said that round table discussions almost always have something 
concerning working with a director (such as hiring, working with).  
 
Web and Newsletter Advisory – Cindy Friedemann (chair) reported that the committee will meet this 
afternoon.  

Digital Content Working Group – Rod Gauvin (ALTAFF representative) said the new digital content 
working group met yesterday for the first time. The group was formed by Keith Fiels and Molly Raphael 
to develop policies and recommendations concerning digital content. Formation of the working group 
is the result of some of the major trade publishers’ refusal to license e‐books to public libraries. Rod 
commented that refusal is based on a number of considerations such as concern for sales, piracy, loss 
of control and other issues. Gauvin said there are additional issues that the group will address (e.g., 
planning, data, business models, accessibility). He said there are about 30 members with all ALA 

5



 
 

divisions represented. Rod said the good news is that discussions are now being held and there is work 
underway to arrange meetings with major trade publishers to explore these issues.  
 
Awards – Rose Mosley (chair) commented that the committee will meet this evening. 
 
Public Library Association Conference – Gail Griffin reported that the PLA conference will be held in 
Philadelphia, March 13‐17. Gail said that ALTAFF submitted three topics. One was selected. The topic is 
“With Friends Like These . . . “The session will be on Friday, March 16.  
 
Public Service Award – Sally Reed said that U.S. Rep. Rush Holt (D‐NJ‐12) has been a “huge” champion 
for libraries in New Jersey and also for libraries at the federal level. Emily Sheketoff, ALA Washington 
Office Director, suggested that Rep. Holt receive the 2012 Public Service Award (to be presented on 
National Library Legislative Day). Reed said that Rep. Holt introduced legislation to include libraries in 
workforce development funding that goes to states and locales. If there are block grants that go to 
states for workforce development libraries would get a part of that funding.  
 
It was MOVED by Robin Hoklotubbe and SECONDED by Gail Griffin to present the 2012 ALTAFF Public 
Service Award to Rep. Rush Holt (D‐NJ). Motion APPROVED. 
 
Joint Membership Proposal with State Chapters – Donna McDonald asked Sally Reed to report on a 
joint membership proposal with state chapters. Sally said the ALA Chapter Relations Committee would 
like to include trustees and friends in a two‐year introductory special offer that if they join their state 
chapter for $100 they automatically get ALA membership and ALTAFF membership. Sally described the 
allocation of the membership dues distribution. The membership is not for existing members. The 
intent is that a new membership will result in a continuing membership. In response to a question Sally 
Reed said that the new membership proposal is strictly voluntary. It was also stated that some state 
chapters have already committed. Sally said that she did not have a list of the states but could get one. 
It was noted that the ALA Chapter Relations Office has started to reach out to state chapters.  
It was MOVED by Susan Schmidt and SECONDED by Gail Griffin to move forward with the two year 
joint membership initiative among ALA, ALTAFF, and Chapter Trustees. Motion APPROVED. 
 
United for Libraries – Donna McDonald reported that she had been approached by ALA President 
Molly Raphael concerning ALTAFF’s re‐naming as “Citizens for Libraries.” There was concern that 
“citizen” was too exclusive. This concern was shared by representatives of some other ALA affiliated 
groups. Donna said that we have been asked to reconsider action on name choice. Donna asked Sally 
Reed to comment. Sally said that board members have been asked to consider name alternatives. She 
mentioned that one suggestion was “Advocates for Libraries.” Sally said that a concern in using 
“advocates” is that it immediately identifies as an interest group. Reed said that another idea is “united 
for libraries.” United for Libraries implies a grassroots and broad based focus – not advocates, not 
lobbyists, just people. She said that it occurred to her that “united for libraries” is what we are. From 
the last board meeting we took away the idea that we are looking for a three to four word tagline, 
something that goes out beyond the library family.  
 
Concern was noted for moving away from identifying as ALTAFF. Others mentioned that there is 
difficulty in relating to ALTAFF, and particularly in fund‐raising on behalf of the organization. A simpler 

6



 
 

and more recognizable name is desirable. ALTAFF, as an acronym, is based on a long and complicated 
name. Another concern was moving away from the trustee, advocate and friends identity. The name 
was changed to Citizens for Libraries by action of the board and membership. Despite the name change 
there has not been significant action to publicize it, and never actually rolled out. Sally Reed suggested 
using “United for Libraries: Association of Library Trustees, Advocates, Friends and Foundations. This 
would provide a shorthand way to introduce the organization and use a name that resonates and that 
we are a division of ALA. This would be a way to have it both ways. Sally said that United for Libraries 
has had great response from people she has talked with, and groups she has spoken to, and she has 
had nothing but a positive response.  
 
It was MOVED by Dora Sims and SECONDED by Gail Griffin to retain the name ALTAFF (clarified as 
revert to the name ALTAFF). A roll call vote was requested and taken. Motion FAILED. 
 
It was MOVED by Dora Sims and SECONDED by Gail Griffin to change the organizational name to 
ALTAFF: United for Libraries. A roll call vote was requested and taken. Motion FAILED. 
 
It was MOVED by Peter Pearson and SECONDED by Kathryn Suarez to change the organization name to 
United for Libraries: Association of Library Trustees, Advocates, Friends and Foundations. A roll call 
vote was requested and taken. Motion APPROVED. Sally Reed reminded that the motion goes to 
membership for approval and there will be another chance to vote it up or down.  
 
Ethics Statement – Donna McDonald said that an ethics statement is used by many organizations and 
it is important for ALTAFF to have such a statement as a model for other organizations. Donna 
recognized the Task Force on Trustee Ethics and Responsibilities members for their work on the 
statement (Peggy Danhof, Diane Sarantakos, and Shirley Lang). The Task Force presented two 
documents for approval. Peggy Danhof, task force chair, commented on the process used in developing 
the statements, including review of statements used by other organizations. It was noted that this is 
intended as a model statement for use by public library boards of trustees that is endorsed by this 
organization. Peggy thanked task force members for their work in preparing the statement. 
 
It was MOVED by Gail Griffin and SECONDED by Rod Gauvin to approve the Public Library Trustee 
Ethics Statement. Motion APPROVED. 
 
Increasing Board Seats for Corporate Sponsors from 4 to 5 – Sally Reed presented a request to 
increase board member slots for corporate sponsors. She referred to the earlier discussion concerning 
corporate member involvement in communicating budget concerns. Sally said that she receives 
questions from potential corporate sponsors about getting a seat on the board if they become a 
corporate sponsor. This is a helpful fund‐raising tool. Reed said that an issue to consider is board 
balance versus the strength in their voice (corporate sponsors) with ALA. A question was asked about 
finding other ways to involve and engage corporate sponsors with the thought of maintaining board 
membership balance. A suggestion was offered to consider an advisory board for corporate 
development, or for other work that is needed (e.g., marketing). It was also suggested that an author 
could be included because we have authors for libraries. This approach wouldn’t require a by‐laws 
change. Sally Reed withdrew the proposal for increasing board seats for corporate sponsors per other 
ideas offered for alternative participation.  

7



 
 

 
It was MOVED by Marsha Bennett and seconded by Gwendolyn Guster Welch to create an advisory 
board to be organized by the executive committee. Motion APPROVED. 
 
Planning Session for 2012 Goals and Accomplishments – Sally Reed said that when ALTAFF does 
strategic planning the discussions are used by staff to develop strategies and tactics. They are then 
prioritized. When completed they are checked off. Sometimes they are modified. The strategy 
discussions provide staff direction for accomplishing goals. What the board sets for goals informs the 
work of staff. Sally suggested that given limited time on the agenda that discussion be devoted to 
membership recruitment, especially for groups and academics. Ideas – direct mailings (working with 
our academic library members), connecting with organizations such as National Association of 
Community Colleges, etc. Another suggestion was a tool kit with resources for academics. Charles 
Hanson mentioned the” Ten Reasons to Form Academic Friends Groups” that he has used.  A similar 
approach could be used to reach schools. Another suggestion was sample press packets for different 
topics. Sally said that once a decision is made on the organizational name the tool kits can be issued.  
 
ALA Presidential Candidates – Barbara Stripling commented on her focus and presidential themes 
(transforming libraries – transforming communities). A representative for presidential candidate Gina 
Millsap was present and commented on behalf of Ms. Millsap.  
 
Adjournment – President Donna McDonald adjourned the board meeting at 11:15 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

Director’s Report 
ALA Annual Conference 2012 

June 24 
Anaheim, Calif. 

 
Budget:  It is possible that ALTAFF will finish the year in the black for the first time in recent 
history.  Revenues have been revised downward and so have expenditures.  This 
accomplishment still depends on the Small Division Subsidy of approximately $55,000, which 
the Budget Analysis and Review Committee (BARC) voted to remove beginning in fiscal year 
2015.  We will continue to work to ensure that we build membership, acquire new and 
maintain existing corporate sponsors, and develop products and services that not only serve 
our members but enhance our revenue stream. 
 
Membership:  While our numbers show a loss of individual members from 2011 to the same 
time this year, our membership has actually grown. In 2010, we gave a free membership to all 
Trustees who were members of ALA but not of ALTAFF. Our retention rate was excellent 
(around 50%), but this year those who did not renew were dropped. A comparison of 2009 
figures with those for 2012 shows that we have gained approximately 200 members – many 
from this campaign. 
 
Group membership (Friends of the Library groups, Boards of Trustees, and library Foundations) 
remains fairly level. Nebraska has continued its statewide purchase of group membership for its 
275 libraries and 6 regional library systems. In addition, Los Angeles recently renewed their 73 
branch Friends groups. Recent improvements to ALA database reports will make it easier for 
staff to reach out to groups with upcoming renewals as well as to contact lapsed groups in a 
timelier manner which we hope will increase retention as we continue to work on growing 
membership in this area.  
 
Webinars:  There has been a remarkable move throughout ALA to provide webinar courses to 
members and ALTAFF is no exception.  The Trustee Academy was launched in 2009 and the 
Baby Boomer Volunteers webinar series launched this spring.  The Trustee Academy has had 
success in attracting statewide purchases by state library agencies (NE, MS, MO, KS, KY, UT, and 
NJ) but it is unclear whether or not the volunteer webinars will be as useful for statewide 
purchases. 
 
The staff is working on developing more webinars this year and next – some free and some at 
modest prices.  Topics to include but are not limited to: 

9



 Discussion with Baker & Taylor winners – what makes their programs successful. 

 Board Governance. 

 How to Start a Friends Group. 

 Evaluating the Library Director. 
 

Board Basics:  In order to assist ALTAFF Board members promote membership in ALTAFF, I’ve 
included a Board Basics sheet (see page xxxx) to help you answer questions about our 
organization.  The sheet includes membership and budget information along with the types of 
services we offer.   
 
Authors for Libraries:  In 2012, with the help of Marci Merola (Office for Library Advocacy), I 
was able to obtain special initiative funds to develop a ZIP code match making software 
program so that our authors can find libraries for programs and librarians can find authors for 
advocacy and also for programs that are in their regions.  Beth Nawalinski worked with a 
software contractor and together they developed the website www.authorsforlibraries.org! 
The Library Quotes website developed from a joint partnership with former ALA president 
Roberta Stevens, OLA, and ALTAFF was merged with the new Authors for Libraries website to 
streamline the staff maintenance of both sites. 
 
Important ALA Initiatives:   ALA is making some key changes in conference structure and 
proposing a new dues structure for membership.   
 
The conference changes will be mostly positive including reducing the overall number of 
programs to enable all programs to be held at the conference center.  Key points include: 
 

 A strict limit of programs for each unit and division.   

 Time slots are going to be further structured to employ only one or two hour program 
slots. This will not include special fund raising events or those not held during normal 
conference hours. 

 All committees meetings are highly encouraged to reduce the number of meeting rooms 
needed. 

 Subject headings for all programs will come from a proscribed set of content streams. 
 

ALA membership committee is proposing that ALA dues be linked to the Consumer Price Index 
so that the rising cost of doing business is matched by increased membership revenues.  This 
may be model for ALTAFF to consider for the future. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Sally G. Reed 
Executive Director 

10



F
un

d:
 F

un
ds

(A
ll 

-)

U
ni

t: 
A

M
E

R
 L

IB
 T

R
U

S
T

E
E

 A
S

S
O

C
 (A

LT
A

F
F

)(
41

1)
A

m
er

ic
an

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

06
/1

1/
20

12
   

1:
06

 P
M

P
ro

je
ct

: P
ro

je
ct

s(
A

ll 
-)

20
12

M
08

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

P
rio

r Y
ea

r A
ct

ua
l

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
V

ar
ia

nc
e

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
%

P
rio

r Y
ea

rA
ct

ua
l

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
ur

re
nt

 B
ud

ge
t

9,
63

0
0

60
,7

33
30

00
B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
0

9,
63

0
0

0

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

5,
23

1
6,

24
8

4,
58

5
40

00
D

U
E

S
/P

E
R

S
O

N
A

L
75

,0
00

40
,4

00
49

,9
98

-9
,5

98
-1

9.
20

 %
36

,3
97

34
,6

00

25
25

-2
63

40
03

D
U

E
S

/L
IF

E
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

-C
U

R
R

E
N

T
30

0
20

0
20

0
0

0.
00

 %
18

2
10

0

2
2

-5
0

40
04

D
U

E
S

/C
N

T
N

U
N

G
 M

B
R

S
 &

 D
IV

 T
R

F
R

30
16

18
-2

-1
1.

11
 %

35
14

5,
25

8
6,

27
5

4,
27

2
S

ub
to

ta
l D

ue
s

75
,3

30
40

,6
16

50
,2

16
-9

,6
00

-1
9.

12
 %

36
,6

14
34

,7
14

3,
10

2
5,

41
5

3,
26

8
41

00
S

A
LE

S
/B

O
O

K
S

65
,0

00
41

,4
92

43
,3

32
-1

,8
40

-4
.2

5 
%

57
,9

28
23

,5
08

3,
10

2
5,

41
5

3,
26

8
S

ub
to

ta
l S

al
es

-N
et

65
,0

00
41

,4
92

43
,3

32
-1

,8
40

-4
.2

5 
%

57
,9

28
23

,5
08

35
58

3
40

4
41

01
S

A
LE

S
/P

A
M

P
H

LE
T

S
7,

00
0

9,
65

5
4,

66
6

4,
98

9
10

6.
92

 %
1,

64
6

-2
,6

55

6,
18

4
0

87
5

41
03

S
A

LE
S

 - 
O

N
LI

N
E

0
15

,6
18

0
15

,6
18

0.
00

 %
5,

79
5

-1
5,

61
8

36
2

2,
65

5
0

41
05

S
A

LE
S

/W
E

B
IN

A
R

S
/W

E
B

C
A

S
T

S
/W

E
B

 
31

,8
75

38
6

21
,2

46
-2

0,
86

0
-9

8.
18

 %
0

31
,4

89

0
37

5
0

41
09

S
A

LE
S

/M
IS

C
4,

50
0

1,
50

0
3,

00
0

-1
,5

00
-5

0.
00

 %
1,

50
0

3,
00

0

6,
58

1
3,

61
3

1,
27

9
S

ub
to

ta
l O

th
er

 S
al

es
43

,3
75

27
,1

59
28

,9
12

-1
,7

53
-6

.0
6 

%
8,

94
1

16
,2

16

6,
54

5
14

,1
19

7,
16

5
41

10
S

U
B

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
S

16
9,

50
0

60
,5

08
11

2,
98

6
-5

2,
47

8
-4

6.
45

 %
57

,0
29

10
8,

99
2

6,
54

5
14

,1
19

7,
16

5
S

ub
to

ta
l S

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
16

9,
50

0
60

,5
08

11
2,

98
6

-5
2,

47
8

-4
6.

45
 %

57
,0

29
10

8,
99

2

50
0

0
42

20
M

E
A

L 
F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

S
49

,7
50

6,
41

8
11

,7
00

-5
,2

82
-4

5.
15

 %
8,

33
5

43
,3

32

50
0

0
S

ub
to

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 C

on
fe

re
nc

es
49

,7
50

6,
41

8
11

,7
00

-5
,2

82
-4

5.
15

 %
8,

33
5

43
,3

32

0
0

0
43

00
G

R
A

N
T

S
/C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

/A
W

A
R

D
S

2,
55

0
0

1,
27

6
-1

,2
76

-1
00

.0
0 

%
0

2,
55

0

FO
R

TH
E0

8M
O

N
TH

SE
N

D
IN

G
A

pr
il 

20
12

A
pr

il 
20

12
Y

ea
r-

T
o-

D
at

e

11



F
un

d:
 F

un
ds

(A
ll 

-)

U
ni

t: 
A

M
E

R
 L

IB
 T

R
U

S
T

E
E

 A
S

S
O

C
 (A

LT
A

F
F

)(
41

1)
A

m
er

ic
an

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

06
/1

1/
20

12
   

1:
06

 P
M

P
ro

je
ct

: P
ro

je
ct

s(
A

ll 
-)

20
12

M
08

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

P
rio

r Y
ea

r A
ct

ua
l

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
V

ar
ia

nc
e

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
%

P
rio

r Y
ea

rA
ct

ua
l

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
ur

re
nt

 B
ud

ge
t

FO
R

TH
E0

8M
O

N
TH

SE
N

D
IN

G
A

pr
il 

20
12

A
pr

il 
20

12
Y

ea
r-

T
o-

D
at

e

0
0

0
S

ub
to

ta
l G

ra
nt

s 
&

 A
w

ar
ds

2,
55

0
0

1,
27

6
-1

,2
76

-1
00

.0
0 

%
0

2,
55

0

6,
50

0
11

,7
50

21
,7

50
44

00
D

O
N

A
T

IO
N

S
/H

O
N

O
R

A
R

IA
13

1,
50

0
68

,6
79

13
1,

50
0

-6
2,

82
1

-4
7.

77
 %

10
4,

71
2

62
,8

21

37
3

46
3

20
0

44
20

IN
T

/D
IV

5,
56

3
3,

62
2

3,
70

6
-8

4
-2

.2
7 

%
3,

44
0

1,
94

1

18
1

42
0

44
21

R
O

Y
A

LT
IE

S
50

0
2,

17
4

33
6

1,
83

8
54

6.
98

 %
3,

59
3

-1
,6

74

0
74

9
0

44
30

M
IS

C
E

LL
A

N
E

O
U

S
 F

E
E

S
9,

00
0

0
5,

99
4

-5
,9

94
-1

00
.0

0 
%

0
9,

00
0

0
0

0
44

90
M

IS
C

E
LL

A
N

E
O

U
S

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
0

0
0

0
0.

00
 %

38
0

7,
05

5
13

,0
04

21
,9

50
S

ub
to

ta
l M

is
c.

14
6,

56
3

74
,4

75
14

1,
53

6
-6

7,
06

1
-4

7.
38

 %
11

1,
78

4
72

,0
88

28
,5

91
42

,4
26

37
,9

33
T

ot
al

 R
ev

en
ue

s
55

2,
06

8
25

0,
66

7
38

9,
95

8
-1

39
,2

91
-3

5.
72

 %
28

0,
63

1
30

1,
40

1

EX
P

EN
SE

S

19
,6

44
19

,4
94

20
,9

56
50

00
S

A
LA

R
IE

S
 &

 W
A

G
E

S
24

3,
20

9
16

1,
82

7
16

0,
59

2
-1

,2
35

-0
.7

7 
%

17
7,

81
1

81
,3

82
5,

89
3

5,
78

4
5,

55
4

50
10

E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

72
,1

73
48

,8
05

47
,6

57
-1

,1
48

-2
.4

1 
%

47
,0

33
23

,3
68

0
62

0
50

16
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L 

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
S

75
0

1,
06

6
49

8
-5

68
-1

14
.0

6 
%

69
0

-3
16

25
,5

37
25

,3
40

26
,5

10
P

ay
ro

ll 
&

 R
el

at
ed

 E
xp

en
se

s
31

6,
13

2
21

1,
69

8
20

8,
74

7
-2

,9
51

-1
.4

1 
%

22
5,

53
4

10
4,

43
4

35
5

50
2

48
4

51
22

B
A

N
K

 S
/C

3,
50

5
1,

79
3

2,
44

6
65

3
26

.6
8 

%
1,

90
9

1,
71

2

0
58

11
2

51
40

E
Q

U
IP

/F
U

R
N

 R
E

P
A

IR
S

70
0

21
3

46
4

25
1

54
.0

9 
%

2,
08

8
48

7

40
4

55
8

0
51

50
M

E
S

S
E

N
G

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

7,
20

0
3,

94
1

4,
66

6
72

5
15

.5
5 

%
2,

54
2

3,
25

9

76
0

1,
11

8
59

5
O

ut
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
s

11
,4

05
5,

94
7

7,
57

6
1,

62
9

21
.5

0 
%

6,
53

8
5,

45
8

-5
90

25
0

0
52

10
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

4,
85

0
1,

85
0

3,
70

0
1,

85
0

50
.0

0 
%

2,
41

4
3,

00
0

-2
3

16
7

0
52

12
LO

D
G

IN
G

 &
 M

E
A

LS
6,

00
0

3,
61

1
5,

33
6

1,
72

5
32

.3
3 

%
5,

66
8

2,
38

9

0
0

0
52

16
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

S
2,

00
0

1,
28

7
1,

50
0

21
3

14
.1

7 
%

51
8

71
3

-6
13

41
7

0
T

ra
ve

l a
nd

 R
el

at
ed

 E
xp

en
se

s
12

,8
50

6,
74

8
10

,5
36

3,
78

8
35

.9
5 

%
8,

60
0

6,
10

2

12



F
un

d:
 F

un
ds

(A
ll 

-)

U
ni

t: 
A

M
E

R
 L

IB
 T

R
U

S
T

E
E

 A
S

S
O

C
 (A

LT
A

F
F

)(
41

1)
A

m
er

ic
an

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

06
/1

1/
20

12
   

1:
06

 P
M

P
ro

je
ct

: P
ro

je
ct

s(
A

ll 
-)

20
12

M
08

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

P
rio

r Y
ea

r A
ct

ua
l

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
V

ar
ia

nc
e

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
%

P
rio

r Y
ea

rA
ct

ua
l

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
ur

re
nt

 B
ud

ge
t

FO
R

TH
E0

8M
O

N
TH

SE
N

D
IN

G
A

pr
il 

20
12

A
pr

il 
20

12
Y

ea
r-

T
o-

D
at

e

0
0

0
53

01
C

O
N

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 R

E
N

T
A

0
0

0
0

0.
00

 %
0

0

0
0

0
53

02
M

E
A

L 
F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

S
35

,7
50

7,
19

6
8,

75
0

1,
55

4
17

.7
7 

%
5,

74
8

28
,5

54

38
4

0
0

53
03

E
X

H
IB

IT
S

25
0

38
4

25
0

-1
34

-5
3.

62
 %

0
-1

34

0
0

0
53

04
S

P
E

A
K

E
R

/G
U

E
S

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

1,
00

0
0

0
0

0.
00

 %
1,

20
0

1,
00

0

1,
00

0
0

0
53

06
A

W
A

R
D

S
2,

35
0

1,
75

0
1,

17
6

-5
74

-4
8.

81
 %

50
0

60
0

0
0

0
53

09
A

U
D

IO
/V

IS
U

A
L 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 R
E

N
T

A
1,

15
0

83
7

40
0

-4
37

-1
09

.1
4 

%
1,

34
6

31
3

0
0

0
53

10
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 R

E
N

T
A

L/
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 C
O

15
0

28
15

0
12

2
81

.0
4 

%
0

12
2

0
0

0
53

50
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 A
LL

O
C

A
T

IO
N

-1
,5

00
0

0
0

0.
00

 %
0

-1
,5

00

1,
38

4
0

0
M

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 C

on
fe

re
nc

es
39

,1
50

10
,1

95
10

,7
26

53
1

4.
95

 %
8,

79
4

28
,9

55

0
16

7
0

54
02

P
R

IN
T

IN
G

-O
U

T
S

ID
E

43
,9

00
26

,7
15

28
,6

86
1,

97
1

6.
87

 %
19

,0
32

17
,1

85

0
0

0
54

03
B

IN
D

IN
G

-O
U

T
S

ID
E

2,
00

0
40

8
1,

00
0

59
2

59
.1

6 
%

2,
26

0
1,

59
2

0
0

0
54

20
C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 F

E
E

S
12

0
0

12
0

12
0

10
0.

00
 %

0
12

0

0
0

0
54

30
W

E
B

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

0
16

3
0

-1
63

0.
00

 %
0

-1
63

2,
25

0
83

3
0

54
32

P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

D
 IN

V
E

N
T

O
R

Y
10

,0
00

10
,8

71
6,

66
6

-4
,2

05
-6

3.
09

 %
7,

83
3

-8
71

17
0

9
54

33
O

R
D

E
R

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
/F

U
LF

IL
LM

E
N

50
0

46
0

25
0

-2
10

-8
3.

87
 %

38
9

40

2,
26

7
1,

00
0

9
P

ub
lic

at
io

n 
R

el
at

ed
 E

xp
en

se
s

56
,5

20
38

,6
17

36
,7

22
-1

,8
95

-5
.1

6 
%

29
,5

13
17

,9
03

0
12

5
0

50
31

S
T

A
F

F
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
1,

50
0

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
10

0.
00

 %
37

5
1,

50
0

61
0

33
3

35
7

55
00

S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
/O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
4,

50
0

1,
93

0
2,

91
6

98
6

33
.8

1 
%

2,
06

7
2,

57
0

0
16

7
0

55
01

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 &
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
/M

IN
O

R
2,

00
0

3,
70

4
1,

33
6

-2
,3

68
-1

77
.2

6 
%

18
2

-1
,7

04

0
17

0
55

02
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L/
P

E
R

IO
D

IC
A

20
0

0
13

6
13

6
10

0.
00

 %
11

8
20

0

50
7

69
6

84
0

55
20

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 R
E

N
T

A
L/

LE
A

S
E

8,
35

0
5,

02
7

5,
56

8
54

1
9.

72
 %

4,
72

7
3,

32
3

2,
48

6
3,

74
9

6,
58

3
55

21
S

P
A

C
E

 R
E

N
T

45
,0

00
21

,8
94

30
,0

00
8,

10
6

27
.0

2 
%

29
,6

58
23

,1
06

31
8

35
4

29
9

55
22

T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

/F
A

X
4,

40
0

2,
80

8
2,

83
2

24
0.

84
 %

2,
74

8
1,

59
2

4
16

7
0

55
23

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
/E

-M
A

IL
2,

00
0

36
6

1,
33

6
97

0
72

.5
8 

%
1,

57
6

1,
63

4

10
5

31
2

57
8

55
25

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

3,
75

0
39

6
2,

49
8

2,
10

2
84

.1
3 

%
3,

59
6

3,
35

4

13



F
un

d:
 F

un
ds

(A
ll 

-)

U
ni

t: 
A

M
E

R
 L

IB
 T

R
U

S
T

E
E

 A
S

S
O

C
 (A

LT
A

F
F

)(
41

1)
A

m
er

ic
an

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

06
/1

1/
20

12
   

1:
06

 P
M

P
ro

je
ct

: P
ro

je
ct

s(
A

ll 
-)

20
12

M
08

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

P
rio

r Y
ea

r A
ct

ua
l

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
V

ar
ia

nc
e

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
%

P
rio

r Y
ea

rA
ct

ua
l

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
ur

re
nt

 B
ud

ge
t

FO
R

TH
E0

8M
O

N
TH

SE
N

D
IN

G
A

pr
il 

20
12

A
pr

il 
20

12
Y

ea
r-

T
o-

D
at

e

34
34

17
55

30
D

E
P

R
E

C
IA

T
IO

N
 F

/E
40

3
26

9
27

2
3

1.
15

 %
13

4
13

4

0
0

0
55

60
O

R
G

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
/C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
0

-6
,0

14
0

6,
01

4
0.

00
 %

0
6,

01
4

45
7

23
7

46
2

55
99

M
IS

C
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

2,
85

0
3,

44
5

1,
89

8
-1

,5
47

-8
1.

51
 %

16
-5

95

4,
52

2
6,

19
1

9,
13

7
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

E
xp

en
se

s
74

,9
53

33
,8

26
49

,7
92

15
,9

66
32

.0
7 

%
45

,1
96

41
,1

27

33
,8

57
34

,0
66

36
,2

51
T

ot
al

 D
ire

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

51
1,

01
0

30
7,

03
1

32
4,

09
9

17
,0

68
5.

27
 %

32
4,

17
6

20
3,

97
9

0
8

0
59

02
IU

T
/D

A
T

A
 P

R
O

C
10

0
0

64
64

10
0.

00
 %

0
10

0

56
1

1,
44

6
81

9
59

03
IU

T
/S

U
B

S
 P

R
O

C
17

,3
55

5,
73

1
11

,5
70

5,
83

9
50

.4
7 

%
6,

73
2

11
,6

24

0
0

0
59

04
T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 T

O
/F

R
O

M
 E

N
D

O
W

M
E

N
T

0
0

0
0

0.
00

 %
0

0

23
25

5
59

05
IU

T
/T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
30

0
93

20
0

10
7

53
.6

5 
%

18
8

20
7

0
0

3
59

09
IU

T
/D

IS
T

 C
T

R
0

11
0

-1
1

0.
00

 %
26

-1
1

42
0

0
59

10
IU

T
/R

E
P

R
O

 C
T

R
0

84
0

-8
4

0.
00

 %
93

-8
4

0
52

0
59

40
IU

T
/R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

62
5

0
41

6
41

6
10

0.
00

 %
0

62
5

0
0

0
59

42
IU

T
/A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0.
00

 %
45

5
0

0
0

0
59

99
IU

T
/M

IS
C

1,
05

0
0

25
0

25
0

10
0.

00
 %

0
1,

05
0

62
6

1,
53

1
82

7
IU

T
19

,4
30

5,
91

8
12

,5
00

6,
58

2
52

.6
5 

%
7,

49
4

13
,5

12

62
6

1,
53

1
82

7
T

ot
al

 In
di

re
ct

 E
xp

en
se

s
19

,4
30

5,
91

8
12

,5
00

6,
58

2
52

.6
5 

%
7,

49
4

13
,5

12

34
,4

82
35

,5
97

37
,0

78
T

O
T

A
L 

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 B
E

F
O

R
E

 O
H

 &
 T

53
0,

44
0

31
2,

94
9

33
6,

59
9

23
,6

50
7.

03
 %

33
1,

67
0

21
7,

49
1

-5
,8

92
6,

82
9

85
5

C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 M
A

R
G

IN
21

,6
28

-6
2,

28
2

53
,3

59
11

5,
64

1
21

6.
72

 %
-5

1,
03

9
83

,9
10

2,
06

3
2,

96
2

1,
42

8
59

11
IU

T
/O

V
E

R
H

E
A

D
35

,5
56

16
,4

61
23

,7
02

7,
24

1
30

.5
5 

%
16

,1
74

19
,0

95

0
-4

,2
42

0
59

98
IU

T
/A

LL
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

-5
0,

91
0

0
-3

3,
93

6
-3

3,
93

6
10

0.
00

 %
0

-5
0,

91
0

14



F
un

d:
 F

un
ds

(A
ll 

-)

U
ni

t: 
A

M
E

R
 L

IB
 T

R
U

S
T

E
E

 A
S

S
O

C
 (A

LT
A

F
F

)(
41

1)
A

m
er

ic
an

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

06
/1

1/
20

12
   

1:
06

 P
M

P
ro

je
ct

: P
ro

je
ct

s(
A

ll 
-)

20
12

M
08

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

P
rio

r Y
ea

r A
ct

ua
l

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
V

ar
ia

nc
e

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
%

P
rio

r Y
ea

rA
ct

ua
l

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

C
ur

re
nt

 B
ud

ge
t

FO
R

TH
E0

8M
O

N
TH

SE
N

D
IN

G
A

pr
il 

20
12

A
pr

il 
20

12
Y

ea
r-

T
o-

D
at

e

36
,5

45
34

,3
17

38
,5

06
T

O
T

A
L 

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

51
5,

08
6

32
9,

41
1

32
6,

36
5

-3
,0

46
-0

34
7,

84
3

18
5,

67
6

-7
,9

32
8,

10
9

3,
29

9
N

E
T

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
/(

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
)

36
,9

82
-7

3,
28

0
63

,5
93

-1
36

,8
73

-2
-4

5,
47

0
11

0,
26

2

1,
69

8
8,

10
9

64
,0

31
E

N
D

IN
G

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

36
,9

82
-6

3,
65

1
63

,5
93

-1
27

,2
44

-2
15

,2
62

10
0,

63
3

15



ALTAFF FY 2012 Revised Budget

Aug 09-Final Aug 10-Final
Aug, 2011 Final 11-

9-11 Dec-11 FY 2012 FY 2012 FY 12 Proj

YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual Budget Request Annual Projection Vs FY12 Bud

Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit Spring Version

Acct.# Description 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF Variance

4000 Dues/Personal 52,120 62,029 55,047 24,661 75,000 65,000 -10,000

4001 Dues/Organizational 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4002 Dues-Special 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4003 Dues Life Members-Current 240 240 225 125 300 300 0

4004 Dues-Cont. Members & Div Trfr 30 30 15 10 30 30 0

Subtotal-Dues 52,390 62,299 55,287 24,796 75,330 65,330 -10,000

4100 Sales/Books 33,255 71,859 65,561 33,509 65,000 65,000 0

4600 Assets Released From Restriction 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4601 Returns/Credits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4620 Contra/Fulfillment Charges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal-Sales-Net 33,255 71,859 65,561 33,509 65,000 65,000 0

4101 Sales/Pamphets 2,336 10,974 3,238 9,355 7,000 10,000 3,000

4102 Sales Audiovisual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4103 Sales/On-line 0 0 18,274 480 0 0 0

4104 Sales/Rental-Mail Lists 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4105 Sales/Webinars, Webcasts. Web C 0 0 0 0 31,875 31,875 0

4108 Sales/ALA Store 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4109 Sales/Miscellaneous 1,618 7,228 1,750 750 4,500 4,500 0

Subtotal-Other Sales 3,954 18,202 23,262 10,585 43,375 46,375 3,000

4110 Subscriptions 9,024 62,260 93,990 40,587 169,500 108,000 -61,500

Subtotal-Subscriptions 9,024 62,260 93,990 40,587 169,500 108,000 -61,500

4140 Advertising/Gross 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4142 Advertising/Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4143 Advertising/Online 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4610 Comm/Online Advertising 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4611 Comm/Sales Rep 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4612 Comm/Adv. Agency 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal-Advertising 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4200 Registration Fees 0 675 0 0 0 0 0

4210 Exhibit Space Rentals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4220 Meal Functions 37,400 32,835 40,737 3,203 49,750 49,750 0

Subtotal-Meetings & Conf. 37,400 33,510 40,737 3,203 49,750 49,750 0

4300 Grants & Awards-Exchange 0 0 0 0 2,550 2,550 0

4301 Grants & Awards-Temporary Rest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal-Grants & Awards 0 0 0 0 2,550 2,550 0

4400 Donations/Honoraria 87,050 126,917 133,284 9,425 131,500 141,500 10,000

4420 Interest/Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4421 Royalties-Exempt 3,780 5,740 5,356 633 500 750 250

4422 L-T Invest. Gain/Loss-Realized 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4423 L-T Invest. Gain/Loss-Unrealized 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4429 Overhd-exempt Rev./Division 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4430 Royalties-Non-Exempt 0 275 0 0 9,000 9,000 0

4490 Misc. Fees/Revenues 0 520 38 0 0 0 0

Subtotal-Misc. 90,831 133,452 138,678 10,058 141,000 151,250 10,250

Total Revenues 226,854 381,582 417,516 122,738 546,505 488,255 -58,250

5000 Salaries & Wages 187,452 266,625 258,505 101,961 243,209 243,209 0

5001 Temp Employees-In-House 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5002 Overtime/Wages 383 0 0 0 0 0 0

5005 Attrition Factor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

16



ALTAFF FY 2012 Revised Budget

Aug 09-Final Aug 10-Final
Aug, 2011 Final 11-

9-11 Dec-11 FY 2012 FY 2012 FY 12 Proj

YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual Budget Request Annual Projection Vs FY12 Bud

Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit Spring Version

Acct.# Description 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF Variance

5009 Accrued Vacation -771 0 0 0 0 0 0

5010 Employee Benefits 49,901 75,534 77,370 30,845 72,173 72,963 -790

5015 Tuition Reimbursement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5016 Prof Memberships 125 688 749 801 750 750 0

Payroll & Related Exp. 237,090 342,847 336,623 133,607 316,132 316,922 -790

5100 Temp Employee/Outside 0 -700 0 0 0 0 0

5110 Professional Services 1,402 1,750 0 0 0 0 0

5120 Legal Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5121 Audit/Tax Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5122 Bank Service Fees 1,298 -1,602 2,231 575 2,250 2,250 0

5140 Repairs/Maintenance 1,538 3,161 2,330 213 700 700 0

5150 Messenger Service 3,101 7,188 4,880 2,722 7,200 7,200 0

5151 Duplication/Outside 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Outside Services 7,340 9,797 9,442 3,510 10,150 10,150 0

5210 Transportation 3,541 3,649 5,054 1,296 4,850 4,850 0

5212 Lodging & Meals 9,024 6,286 6,391 3,433 6,000 6,000 0

5214 Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5216 Business Meetings 920 1,419 853 1,000 2,000 2,000 0

Travel and Related Expenses 13,485 11,354 12,297 5,729 12,850 12,850 0

5300 Facilities Rent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5301 Conference Equipment Rental 0 190 215 0 0 0 0

5302 Meal Functions 28,960 27,785 25,684 7,196 35,750 35,750 0

5303 Exhibits 503 663 399 0 250 250 0

5304 Speaker/Guest Expenses 0 1,010 2,316 0 1,000 1,000 0

5305 Speaker/Guest Honorarium 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5306 Awards 0 2,750 4,500 0 2,350 2,350 0

5307 Security Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5308 Special Transportation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5309 Audio/Visual Equip Rental & Labo 151 1,153 1,346 0 1,150 1,150 0

5310 Computer Rental/Internet Connec 0 0 0 0 150 150 0

5350 Program Allocation -1,500 -1,500 -1,500 0 -1,500 -1,500 0

Meetings & Conferences 28,114 32,051 32,960 7,196 39,150 39,150 0

5400 Editl/Proofreading-O/S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5401 Typesetting/Comptn-O/S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5402 Printing-O/S 17,324 37,756 28,751 16,510 43,900 40,000 3,900

5403 Binding-O/S 1,287 2,042 3,551 408 2,000 2,000 0

5404 Design Service-O/S 2,625 0 0 0 0 0 0

5406 Review Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5410 Mail Service-O/S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5411 Advertising/Space 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5412 Advertising/Direct 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5413 Mail List Rental 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5414 Supplies/Production 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5415 Pre-Press/Photo Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5416 Adv Production Cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5420 Copyright Fees 0 0 0 0 120 120 0

5430 Web Operating Expenses 0 36 72 99 0 0 0

5431 Webminars/Webcasts/Web CE Ex 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5432 Purchased Inventory 6,661 38,446 12,956 3,373 10,000 10,000 0

5433 Order Processing/Fulfillment 384 398 615 389 500 500 0

5480 Cost of Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5490 Inventory Adjustment 0 58,983 0 0 0 0 0

5499 Inventory Reserve Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Publication Related Expenses 28,281 137,662 45,945 20,780 56,520 52,620 3,900

5030 Staff Recruitment/Relocation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5031 Staff Development 4,671 1,063 375 0 1,500 1,500 0

17



ALTAFF FY 2012 Revised Budget

Aug 09-Final Aug 10-Final
Aug, 2011 Final 11-

9-11 Dec-11 FY 2012 FY 2012 FY 12 Proj

YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual Budget Request Annual Projection Vs FY12 Bud

Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit Spring Version

Acct.# Description 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF 411-ALTAFF Variance

5500 Supplies/Operating 4,111 4,620 3,300 692 4,500 4,000 500

5501 Equipment/Software-Minor 981 2,288 1,123 3,620 2,000 2,000 0

5502 Ref Matls/Periodicals 202 186 144 0 200 200 0

5510 Insurance 71 953 0 0 0 0 0

5520 Equipment Rental/Lease 4,350 6,101 7,363 2,964 8,350 8,350 0

5521 Space Rent 18,283 37,257 40,283 14,880 45,000 33,000 12,000

5522 Telephone & Fax/O/S 1,896 4,168 4,182 1,869 4,400 4,400 0

5523 Postage & E-Mail/O/S 951 2,047 2,304 59 2,000 2,000 0

5525 Utilities 2,510 3,627 5,627 158 3,750 3,000 750

5530 Depr/Furn & Equipment 0 0 202 168 403 403 0

5531 Depr/Building 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5532 Amortization/Equip Lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5540 Royalty Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5543 Bad Debt Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5544 Interest Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5545 Taxes/Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5550 Promotion 407 1,763 0 0 0 0 0

5560 Organization Support/Contrib. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5599 Misc. Expense 5,945 4,499 1,153 2,419 2,850 2,850 0

Operating Expenses 44,378 68,570 66,056 26,828 74,953 61,703 13,250

5900 IUT-Marketing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5901 IUT-Prod. Serv./Adm. Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5902 IUT-ITTS 253 101 0 0 100 100 0

5903 IUT-Subscription Processing 1,082 6,899 10,171 4,042 17,355 12,405 4,950

5904 Transfer to/from Endowment 0 -3,964 -3,631 0 -4,308 -4,308 0

5905 IUT-Telephone 377 284 222 48 300 300 0

5906 IUT-Order Billing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5908 IUT-Maint. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5909 IUT-Dist. Center 316 47 28 11 0 0 0

5910 IUT-Repro. 523 0 93 0 0 0 0

5912 IUT-Copy Editing/Proofreading 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5913 IUT-Composition/Alteration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5940 IUT-Registration Processing 0 0 0 0 625 625 0

5941 IUT-CHOICE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5942 IUT-Advertising 0 6,000 455 0 0 0 0

5999 IUT-Misc. 0 0 0 0 1,050 1,050 0

Total IUTs 2,550 9,368 7,338 4,101 15,122 10,172 4,950

Total Direct Expenses 361,238 611,650 510,661 201,750 524,877 503,567 21,310

Contribution Margin -134,384 -230,068 -93,145 -79,012 21,628 -15,312 -36,940

5911 IUT-General Overhead 5,525 18,536 23,862 10,797 35,556 35,556 0

Total Expenses Excl. Alloc 366,762 630,186 534,523 212,547 560,433 539,123 21,310

5998 IUT-Allocations -95,358 -57,757 -56,583 0 -50,910 -50,910 0

Total Exp. Incl. OH & Alloc. 271,404 572,429 477,940 212,547 509,523 488,213 21,310

Net Rev/(Exp) Before Taxes -44,550 -190,847 -60,424 -89,809 36,982 42 -36,940

5600 Taxes/Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenses Incl. Taxes 271,404 572,429 477,940 212,547 509,523 488,213 21,310

Net Rev/(Exp) After Taxes -44,550 -190,847 -60,424 -89,809 36,982 42 -36,940

18



ALA Statistics Monthly Report April,  2010 ALTAFF. Page 38 of 8805/11/2010

DECEMBER 2009 MEMBERS HAVE 
BEEN SUSPENDED

1,143 1,144TOTAL -0.09%

54Corporate -20.00%

162161Organizational -0.62%

978 977Personal 0.10%

Overall 2010 2009 % Change

Personal

%-2.005049Renew
%1527New
%-66.6731Reinstate

Drop

34.06138185Regular 

Student

-12.57748654Trustee

150.00820Associate 

-37.5085Non-Salaried 

100.0012International 

0.0022Cont - 2 Free 

33.331824Cont- No Free

-10.531917Life - 2 Free 

0.0022Life  - No Free

8.331213Honorary

0.10978TOTAL

100.0048

80.00

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

20 28 -28.57%

977

Other/Misc 4 1 300.00%

Support Staff 8 6

%

33.33

2010 2009 % Change

Retired

Life Installment

20 8 150%

2 2 0%

Organization 2010 2009 % Change

Renew 74 -42.86%

New 13 200.00%

Reinstate %

Drop 85 -37.50%

%11 6 83.33Lib< $50,000
%18 12 50.00Lib<$199,999

%16 79 -79.75Lib<$2,000,000

%9 7 28.57Lib<$499,999
%9 10 -10.00Lib<$999,999
%Lib>$2,000,000 65 10 550.00

%1 1 0.00Chapter Mbr

%4 5 -20.00Non-Profit Org

%11 12 -8.33International Lib

162161 %-0.62TOTAL

-15.002017State Libraries

Corporate 2010 2009 % Change

%Renew
%New
%Reinstate
%1Drop

%Benefactor
%-33.332 3Champion
%Patron
%0.002 2Contributor
%Subscr Personal

4TOTAL 5 -20.00%

19



ALA Statistics Monthly Report April,  2012 ALTAFF. Page 40 of 8305/08/2012

DECEMBER 2011 MEMBERS HAVE 
BEEN SUSPENDED

1,337 1,482TOTAL -9.78%

65Corporate -16.67%

157158Organizational 0.64%

1,174 1,319Personal -10.99%

Overall 2012 2011 % Change

Personal

%87.183973Renew
%1312New
%4Reinstate

Drop

8.80216235Regular 

Student

-15.76920775Trustee

-29.411712Associate 

-18.18119Non-Salaried 

0.0022International 

0.0011Cont - 2 Free 

14.292832Cont- No Free

0.001616Life - 2 Free 

-66.6731Life  - No Free

-31.714128Friend

-10.991,174TOTAL

-55.5694

-7.69

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

34 23 47.83%

1,319

Other/Misc 13 57 -77.19%

Support Staff 12 11

%

9.09

2012 2011 % Change

Retired

Life Installment

26 26 0%

2 2 0%

Organization 2012 2011 % Change

Renew 17 600.00%

New %

Reinstate %

Drop 72 -71.43%

%13 13 0.00Lib Very Sm Library
%22 22 0.00Lib Small Library
%15 12 25.00Lib Medium Library
%12 11 9.09Lib Large Library
%Lib Very Lg Library 63 68 -7.35

%2 1 100.00Chapter Mbr

%2 2 0.00Non-Profit Org

%8 9 -11.11International Lib

157158 %0.64TOTAL

10.531921State Libraries

Corporate 2012 2011 % Change

1 %0.001Renew
%New
%Reinstate
%Drop

%0.002 2Champion
%Patron
%-25.003 4Contributor

5TOTAL 6 -16.67%

20



 

 
 

ALTAFF surveyed its Friends of the Library group members in early 2012 to find out how much money 
they were raising for their libraries in the preceding year. The results were astonishing! Out of 442 

surveys, the total raised was $21,702,328 – that’s an average of $50,120 for libraries of all types. And 
that’s after we took out the highest amount raised ($5,000,000) and the lowest amount raised ($135). 

 

You Gotta Have Friends! 
 

Total Raised  $21,702,328    Average Per Friends Group  $50,120 

And . . . 49 Friends groups raised a total of $3,003,646 for capital campaigns –  
that’s an average of $61,298 each to help libraries grow and expand. 

 

Here’s How the Money Was Spent 

 

 

 

 

442 Friends groups 
raised over $21 million 

for their libraries! 

Join ALTAFF today: Friends groups, Boards of Trustees, and library Foundations can join ALTAFF 
directly at affordable rates to receive access to a wealth of resources and benefits just for 
members. Visit us online at www.ala.org/altaff or call (800) 545‐2433, ext. 2161 today. 

N
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
lib
ra
ri
es
 t
h
at
 s
p
en

t 
fu
n
d
s 
o
n
 c
at
eg
o
ry
 in
d
ic
at
e
d
. 

21



 

ALTAFF in a Nutshell 

Membership 

Individual Members  1337 
Group Members   1783 
 

Dues 

Individual Members must first become members of ALA ($59 for Friends and Trustees) 
ALTAFF Dues are $50, includes one section (Trustees, Friends or Foundations) free; $15 each additional section. 
 
Boards of Trustees, Foundations, and Friends Groups may join ALTAFF as group members to receive all of ALTAFF’s 
services but they may not participate in ALTAFF as committee members or board members. They may not vote in 
ALTAFF elections and they do not receive American Libraries. 
 
Friends Groups dues are based on size of group: 
 
Small (up to 100 members)    $50 
Medium (100‐500 members)    $80 
Large (over 500 members)     $125 
International (regardless of size)    $85 

 
Board of Trustees and Foundations  dues are based on the library’s budget: 
 
Small Library (Less than $1 million)    $50 
Medium Library ($1 to $5 million)    $80 
Large Library (over $5 million)    $125 
International (regardless of size)    $85   

 

Typical Services 
 

Free: 
Bi‐Monthly Newsletter – The Voice – one print subscription included; access to current and archived copies online. 
Toolkits 
Access to special publications including 
  Making Our Voices Heard: Citizens Speak Out for Libraries 
  Getting Grants in Your Community 
  A Library Board’s Practical Guide to Self‐Evaluation 
  101+ Great Ideas for Libraries and Friends 
Discounts : 
Webinars 
Ticketed Events at Conferences 
Special Corporate Offerings  
ALTAFF publications such as The Complete Library Trustee Handbook 

22



J o i n 
A LTA F F !
ALTAFF brings together library Trustees, advocates, Friends and Foundations into a partner-
ship that creates a powerful force for libraries in the 21st century. Board of  Trustees, Friends 
groups, and Foundations can join as group members without first joining ALA to receive 
ALTAFF’s services and materials (but not benefits given to ALA personal members).

H e r e ’ s  w h a t  A LTA F F  p r o v i d e s  t o  i t s  m e m b e r s  d e p e n d i n g  o n  t y p e  ( Fr i e n d s  G r o u p ,  B o a r d  o f 
Tr u s t e e s ,  o r  Fo u n d a t i o n ) :  
 
FREE Newsletters!

•	 A subscription to The Voice for America’s Libraries, a 24-page bi-monthly newsletter chock full of  best practices and great 
ideas for Trustees, Friends, and Foundations.

•	 Digital access to all archived issues.

FREE Toolkits!
Access to nine in-depth toolkits, including:

•	 How to Start a Friends Group.
•	 How to Sell Books on the Internet.
•	 Tapping into the Baby Boom Volunteers.
•	 Effective Board Meetings.

FREE Access to digital publications, including:
•	 Making Our Voices Heard: Citizens Speak Out for Libraries.
•	 Getting Grants in Your Community.
•	 101+ Great Ideas for Libraries and Friends.
•	 A Library Board’s Practical Guide to Self-Evaluation.

DISCOUNTS!
•	 Save on ALTAFF’s Trustee Academy, a series of  five online courses for Trustees.
•	 Save $30 on Even More Great Ideas for Libraries and Friends.
•	 Save $20 on The Complete Library Trustee Handbook.
•	 Save $10 on The Book Lover’s Calendar (buy in quantities of  30 for $2.50 each, plus 5% for shipping and handling) 

and sell for the retail price of  $12.99 to raise money for the library.
•	 Save 10% on all purchases from the ALA Store. 

AWARDS!
Members are eligible to apply for several ALTAFF awards, including the:

•	 Trustee Citation Award.
•	 Major Benefactor Award.
•	 Three $1,000 Baker & Taylor Awards for Friends.
•	 Two $250 National Friends of  Libraries Week Awards. 

Group memberships begin at $50 per year; Friends groups pay $50-$125, depending on the 
number of  members in the group, and Board of  Trustees and Foundations pay $50-$125, de-
pending on the size of  the library’s budget. More information about specific benefits based on 
group type is available on the ALTAFF website.

Join today by visiting www.ala.org/altaff,  calling (800) 545-2433, ext. 2161 ,

or emailing altaff@ala.org.

NEW - ALTAFF members save 
$100 on the three-part webcast 
series “Baby Boomer Volunteers 
for Friends and Libraries.”

23



A LTA F F  B e n e f i t s
F R I E N D S  G R O U P,  F O U N DAT I O N ,  A N D  T R U S T E E 
B OA R D  G R O U P  M E M B E R S
A Friends Group, Foundation, or Board of  Trustees can join ALTAFF as 
a group member to receive publications and online resources. This is not a 
voting membership for ALA or ALTAFF, and does not include any of  the 
benefits afforded to ALA personal members. Group members receive a sub-
scription to The Voice, the  bimonthly newsletter of  ALTAFF and access 
to either the Friends & Foundations Zone or Trustee Zone, online resource 
areas of  the ALTAFF website with toolkits, electronic publications, special of-
fers, and much more. Groups members are eligible to apply for group-based 
awards and grants. 

P E R S O N A L  M E M B E R S
Individuals (new or current ALA members) may join ALTAFF as a personal 
member for $50 with one section free; additional sections are $15 each. Per-
sonal members receive a subscription to The Voice, the  bimonthly newsletter 
of  ALTAFF and access to either the Friends & Foundations Zone or Trustee 
Zone, online resource areas of  the ALTAFF website with toolkits, electronic 
publications, special offers, and much more. Personal members are eligible to 
vote in elections, serve on committees, be nominated for a board position, and 
apply for personal-based awards.

Get  the  suppor t  o f  a  

na t iona l  o rgan i za t ion , 

a long  w i th  in fo rmat ion ,  

gu idance ,  and  

resources  un ique  

to  Trus tees ,  Fr iends ,  

and  Foundat ions . 

___ Yes, my Board would like to join as an ALTAFF group 
	 member. 
	 Select type:
		  ___ Library Foundation
		  ___ Board of  Trustees

Select Appropriate Library Operating Budget:
	 ___ Less than $1 million/yr - $50
	 ___ Between $1 million/yr and $5 million/yr - $80
	 ___ More than $5 million/yr - $125
	 ___ International (regardless of  budget) - $85

Visit www.ala.org/altaff 

for more information
T O TA L  D U E :  _____

___ Yes, my Friends group would like to join as an ALTAFF 
	 group member. 

Select Appropriate Number of  Members:
	 ___ Up to 99 members - $50
	 ___ 100-499 members - $80
	 ___ More than 500 members - $125
	 ___ International (regardless of  size) - $85

L I B R A R Y  F O U N D AT I O N  O R  T R U S T E E  B O A R D  G R O U P  M E M B E R S H I P

F R I E N D S  O F  T H E  L I B R A R Y  G R O U P  M E M B E R S H I P

___ Join ALA and ALTAFF.
	 ___ Trustee—$109
	 ___ Friend/Foundation—$109
	 ___ Librarian/Regular (First Time ALA Member)—$115

Choose one section FREE. Additional section(s) $15 each.
	 ____ Trustee  ____ Friends  ____ Foundation

P E R S O N A L  M E M B E R S H I P  ( N E W  A L A  M E M B E R S )

___ Add ALTAFF to my current ALA membership—$50 Choose one section FREE. Additional section(s) $15 each.
	 ____ Trustee  ____ Friends  ____ Foundation

P E R S O N A L  M E M B E R S H I P  ( C U R R E N T  A L A  M E M B E R S )

24



P E R S O N A L / H O M E  I N F O R M AT I O N  

FIRST NAME  

LAST NAME

ADDRESS

ADDRESS CONTINUED   

CITY                                                              

STATE/PROV                                                 ZIP/PC

COUNTRY

HOME PHONE

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

WORK/ORGANIZATION INFORMATION  

ORGANIZATION

JOB POSITION/TITLE

ADDRESS

ADDRESS CONTINUED   

CITY                                                              

STATE/PROV                                                 ZIP/PC

COUNTRY

WORK PHONE

FAX

E-MAIL ADDRESS

C O M M U N I C AT I O N  P R E F E R E N C E S 

Send ALA Billing to:  Work    Home

Send ALA Mail to: Work    Home

To ensure you receive timely and useful information from 
ALA units and carefully screened outside organizations, 
and that you receive only the types of information you 
want, please indicate your communication preferences 
below:
 From ALA and outside organizations 
 Just ALA  
 Offi cial communications only

Please choose a format:  
 By e-mail 
 By paper 
 Either

P AY M E N T  M E T H O D

My check is enclosed for $__________, payable to the 
    American Library Association.

A purchase order is enclosed.

Charge $__________ to my  

 VISA  
 MasterCard  
 American Express

CARD NUMBER                                                                                                                                

EXPIRATION DATE 

NAME ON CARD

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

M A I L  C O M P L E T E D  F O R M 
W I T H  P AY M E N T  T O :

ALTAFF
109 S. 13th Street, Suite 3N

Philadelphia, PA 19107

Please contact ALTAFF at (800) 545-2433, 

ext. 2161 or altaff@ala.org with any questions.

25



1 

 

ALTAFF Committees and Charges 

Revised 6.12.12 

ALTAFF Leaders Orientation Committee (ALT-LD):  To design an Annual Conference program for 
all incoming ALTAFF leader volunteers that will assist them in their work on behalf of ALTAFF 
and further their understanding of the ALTAFF division and its policies and procedures.  

Minimum Expectations: 

 Design and implement program at annual conference designed for incoming ALTAFF 
leaders that includes: 

o ALTAFF overview 
o Timelines for work product 
o ALA Connect 
o Necessary forms 
o Minimum Expectations for achievement 

 
Annual Conference Program Committee (ALT-CF):  To develop, coordinate and implement 

programs sponsored by ALTAFF at Annual Conferences that specifically address, both 
collectively and separately, the issues and concerns of library Trustees, Friends of Libraries and 
Library Foundations; to receive conference program requests and review them for adherence to 
established procedures, elimination of duplications, and budgets.  To submit program requests 
along with the committee’s recommendations to the ALTAFF Board for approval.  

Minimum Expectations: 

 Contact Committee Chairs to receive program proposals. 
 Develop programs for important areas not covered by Committees. 
 Fill out or ensure that program forms are filled out for all programs and deliver to staff. 
 Follow up with all program contacts in the spring to be sure that programs are 

progressing. 
 
 

Awards Committee (ALT-AW): To assess and recommend to the board winners of various awards 
and grants issued by ALTAFF throughout the year. 

Minimum Expectations: 

 Work with staff to publicize opportunities for awards. 
 Meet at Midwinter conference to review applications. 
 Determine winners for each award in consideration and report immediately to the staff. 
 Notify winners. 
 Meet virtually in cases where an award must be determined outside the midwinter and 

annual conference time frame. 

26



2 

 

Legislation, Advocacy & Intellectual Freedom Committee (ALT-LGADIF):  To work closely with 
the ALA’s Office for Library Advocacy, Washington Office, and Office of Intellectual Freedom 
to identify and encourage library advocates and ALTAFF member response to library legislation 
and issues of intellectual freedom. To promote national legislative action as needed on the 
ALTAFF list-serve; to write appropriate articles and press releases for ALTAFF newsletter and 
website; to advise the Annual Conference Program Committee on appropriate programs for 
legislation, intellectual freedom, and advocacy – especially those that are co-sponsorship 
opportunities with the Office for Library Advocacy, the Office for Intellectual Freedom, and 
other ALA Divisions and Units as appropriate. 

Minimum Expectations: 

 Appoint a committee member to attend meetings of the OLA, ALAWO, and the OIF. 
 Liaisons write at least two articles of national issues that will or can impact libraries of all 

types at the local level for the VOICE. 
 Plan at least one program about citizens and national library issues for annual 

conference. 
 

Newsletter & Website Advisory Committee (ALT-NEWSWEB): To monitor the ALTAFF website 
and newsletter, The Voice, for quality of content and design; to solicit articles of interest to 
membership; to make recommendations to ALTAFF staff for website development and use; and 
newsletter content and structure.  

Minimum Expectations: 

 Regularly monitor ALTAFF website to ensure content is readily accessible and up-to-date 
and report back to staff. 

 Solicit or write at least three articles for the VOICE that are of interest to Trustees, 
Friends and/or library supporters. 

 
Nominating Committee (ALT-NM):  To promote and publicize leadership opportunities in 

ALTAFF. To  prepare an ALTAFF slate for the positions of President-Elect, Secretary-
Treasurer; Division Councilor; one At-Large Trustee section member; one At-Large Friend 
section member; and one At-Large Foundation section member for ALTAFF Board approval and 
inclusion in the ALA election ballot.  

Minimum Expectations: 

 Solicit recommendations and nominations for open Board positions between Annual 
Conference and Midwinter meeting. 

 Meet at Midwinter Meeting to discuss nominees. 
 Obtain permission from all nominees considered for office to be placed on ballot. 
 Meet at Annual Conference to finalize slate of two persons for each open position to be 

presented at the Annual Conference board meeting for approval.    
 Ensure that all nominees complete the ALA forms necessary for placement on the ballot by 

ALA deadline. 

27



3 

 

 

PLA Conference Program Committee (ALT-PLANC):  To develop and submit programs to the PLA 
National Conference Committee that will specifically address the issues and concerns of library 
Trustees, Friends and Foundations; to implement such programs upon PLA approval and 
acceptance of these submittals.  These committee members serve a two-year term.  

Minimum Expectations: 

 Meet remotely beginning in the fall following the last PLA spring conference. 
 Develop a minimum of one program for Trustees. Seek and obtain permission of speakers 

for any and all program proposals. 
 Submit proposal to PLA conference program committee by deadline. 
 Ensure that speakers are kept up-to-date on proposed program. 
 Following program acceptance, work with staff to promote the program. 
 Ensure that on-site program location is set up according to request with proper equipment 

available at least 45 minutes prior to program. 
 

28



 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Congratulations, and welcome to the world of ALTAFF Leaders!   
 
As a new ALTAFF Committee Chair, it is easy to feel lost and unsure of your duties. 
This reference tool is intended to help you through the maze of information 
throughout your term(s) of office. 
 

 
Getting Started 
 
If you do these six things, you will be ahead of the game: 
 

 Get a calendar or organizer just for ALTAFF tasks and dates. 
 As soon as you receive an email or written material from ALTAFF or ALA, read it and note what 

needs to be done; don’t miss a deadline by putting something aside to deal with later. 
 Bookmark the ALTAFF website (www.ala.org/altaff), and become familiar with the bylaws, and 

other current information on the site. 
 Access a list of your committee members beginning July 1 through ALA Connect or on the ALTAFF 

website (click on “About ALTAFF” then “Committees”).  
 Establish a good working relationship with the current committee chair and learn all you can from 

that individual. 
 If you are not already a member of the ALTAFF listservs, join now and participate. (Go to 

www.ala.org/altaff and click on “Friends Groups” then “Friends Listserv” as well as click on 
“Trustees” and then “Trustee Listserv” for specific instructions for both listservs. 

 
Useful Information about ALTAFF 
 
ALTAFF is the Association of Library Trustees, Advocates, Friends and Foundations, one of 11 divisions of 
the American Library Association. The focus of ALTAFF is to help educate and support Trustees, Friends 
and Foundation members to help maximize their effectiveness on behalf of all types of libraries 
everywhere including their ability to be excellent library governors, fundraisers and especially advocates. 
 
Active membership involves serving on ALTAFF-wide or ALTAFF section committees and discussion groups. 
There are opportunities for virtual committee membership. ALTAFF has the following sections: 
 

 Trustees 
 Friends 
 Foundations 

 
Staff Contact Information 
 
The ALTAFF office is open 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. EST and can be reached by calling (800) 545-2433, ext. 2161. 
Or contact staff as follows: 

 Sally Reed, Executive Director, sreed@ala.org 
 Beth Nawalinski, Director of Marketing & Communications, bnawalinski@ala.org 
 Jillian Kalonick, Marketing/PR Specialist, jkalonick@ala.org  

   

 
 

Key Information for  
New ALTAFF Committee Chairs 
 

29



 

Your Office and What it Entails 
 
As a ALTAFF committee chair, you have agreed to a 1-year term, with the exception of the PLA 
Conference Committee chair who serves a 2-year term. Your term begins immediately following the 
annual conference.  
 
1.  (June ALA annual conference – just before your term starts) Attend the Leaders Orientation.  
Although you may already know what your duties are, attending this orientation will help to put the 
information in perspective and give you an opportunity to meet or at least recognize those you will need 
to know later, and to ask questions. 
 
2.  (July/August) Determine how you will work with your committee members remotely:   

 Work remotely through ALA Connect. Committee members will automatically see their new 
committees in ALA Connect on July 1. ALA Connect accommodates discussions, document sharing, 
events/deadlines, and archives your work. Only your committee members will be able to see these 
posts and information. 

 Work remotely using a listserv. If you choose to use a listserv please contact Beth Nawalinski at 
bnawalinski@ala.org to have this set up for your committee. 

 Virtual Meetings. ALTAFF staff can assist you with setting up a virtual meeting space using iLINC 
and voice-over-Internet (VOIP). 

 Conference Calls. If your group would like to have set up a conference call please contact ALTAFF 
staff for assistance.  

 
3.  (July/August) Plan and coordinate the committee's work for the year in accordance with the 
goals of ALA and ALTAFF.   

 Communicate with the past chair to determine ongoing projects and goals.   
 Organize how projects will be implemented, including timelines, deadlines, and resources. 

4.  (July/August) Contact your committee members and welcome them to the committee.  This 
is the time to tell them about projects and expectations for the upcoming year.  
  
5.  (Prior to ALA Midwinter & Annual) Maintain ongoing communication with committee 
members and prepare for conference meetings.  Set the agenda and organize the meeting.  
 
6.  (ALA Midwinter) Chair your committee’s meetings.   
Return post-conference reports and minutes to the ALTAFF office as soon as possible after the Midwinter 
Meeting  

 
7.  (January/February) Recommend reappointment of effective committee members and 
suggest names of potential committee members to the ALTAFF president-elect. You might 
recommend someone as the next chair of the committee to the ALTAFF president-elect. 

8.  (After ALA Annual) Contact the new chair to discuss continuing projects and possible goals 
for the next year.  Send the records of the committee to the new chair. Send archival records to the 
ALTAFF office.  

Useful tips for the ALA conferences: 

 Find the ALA Offices and the ALTAFF table – forms and information are kept here that you may 
need during the conference. You can also leave messages for Board members and ALTAFF staff. 

 Pick up an ALTAFF member ribbon from the ALTAFF table to attach to your badge and take some 
for your committee members. 

30



Basic Principles of Parliamentary Procedure 
 
1. Parliamentary procedure exists to facilitate the transaction of business and to promote 

cooperation and harmony.  
2. All members have equal rights, privileges, and obligations.  
a. The majority has the right to decide. 
b. The minority has rights which must be protected. 
3. A quorum must be present for the group to act.  
4. Full and free discussion of every motion considered is a basic right.  
5. Only one question at a time can be considered at any given time.  
6. Members have the right to know at all times what the immediately pending question 

is, and to have it restated before a vote is taken.  
7. No member can speak until recognized by the chair.  
8. No one can speak a second time on the same question as long as another wants to 

speak a first time.  
9. The chair should be strictly impartial.  
 
 
Handling a motion. 
 
Three steps by which a motion is brought before the group  

1. A member makes a motion.  
2. Another member seconds the motion.  
3. The chair states the question on the motion. 

 
Three steps in the consideration of a motion 

1. The members debate the motion (unless no member claims the floor for that 
purpose).  

2. The chair puts the question to a vote.  
a. The chair restates the question. 
b. The chair takes the vote: 

i. “All in favor of the motion, say aye.” 
ii. “Those opposed, say no.” 

3. The chair announces the result of a vote. A complete announcement should 
include:  

a. Report on the voting itself, stating which side prevailed (and giving the 
count if a count prevailed). 

b. Declaration that the motion is adopted or lost.  
c. Statement indicating the effect of the vote or ordering its execution.  
d. Where applicable, announcement of the next item of business or stating 

the question of the next motion that consequently comes up for a vote. 
  

Source:  
Dr. John A. Cagle,  Parliamentarian of the Academic Senate and Professor of 
Communication at California State University, Fresno 
http://www.csufresno.edu/comm/cagle-p3.htm 

31



 

 

TO:        ALA Council, ALA Executive Board 
FROM:   Donna K. McDonald, President 
DATE:     June 4, 2012 
 
RE:          State of the Division 

 
United for Libraries:  The members of the Association of Library Trustees, Advocates, Friends and 
Foundations voted in the spring election to rename our organization “United for Libraries” with the 
subheading: Association of Library Trustees, Advocates, Friends and Foundations.  The majority of the 
board of directors felt that this change was more engaging, more memorable, and fully reflective of our 
chief goal which is to unite lay supporters of libraries everywhere for promotion, support, and advocacy.  
A marketing plan will be developed at conference to launch the new name on September 4, 2012. 
 
Trustee Academy:  The Trustee Academy is a five course webinar series that helps to train trustees on 
everything from the basics of their role to financial planning, to working effectively with their director, 
and to how to be effective advocates.  So far, the following states have purchased all or some of the 
courses for Trustees in their states or regions:  Nebraska, Utah, New Jersey, Kansas, Kentucky, Missouri, 
and Mississippi. This year, Utah renewed their subscription to this series.  We will be adding a new 
course this fall on policies for meeting rooms that will be given by the Office for Intellectual Freedom. 

 
Baby Boomer Volunteers:  This spring, ALTAFF launched a new series of webinars on how to engage the 
baby boom generation as volunteers for libraries and Friends.  The three part series discusses the way in 
which baby boomers want to volunteer and how that is significantly different than what “yesterday’s 
volunteers” looked for in these opportunities.  The series then goes on to discuss how libraries can 
change and create volunteer positions to engage this group and finally how Friends groups can 
restructure to be more inviting to baby boomers and younger volunteers. 
 
Authors for Libraries:  This summer, ALTAFF used 2015 funds to create a ZIP code match‐making 
program for our Authors for Libraries.  This database will allow libraries to find authors in their areas to 
help advocate for their libraries when needed.  In addition, it will allow librarians to find authors for 
programs and conversely, allow our authors to connect with libraries in their areas to offer 
programming.  This idea was formed in partnership with the Office for Library Advocacy and the Chapter 
Relations Office.  The software will be available on their websites as well. 
 

32



ALTAFF / LLAMA Collaborative:  ALTAFF and LLAMA representatives will be meeting for the first time at 
the annual conference in Anaheim to develop plans for a joint preconference at the annual conference 
in Chicago, 2013.  The preconference will focus on fundraising and will be promoted to both library 
administrators as well as to Trustees, Foundation members, and Friends members.  In addition to this 
collaboration, there will be a discussion group in Seattle (Midwinter 2013) on developing and 
maintaining successful Friends groups for library administrators and Friends.  Finally, ALTAFF will be 
offering a special membership this fall to LLAMA members.  To wit, those LLAMA members who join 
their Friends groups and/or Boards of Trustees to ALTAFF will receive free access to the Baby Boomer 
Volunteer webinars. 
 
ALTAFF and Chapter Relations:  This year we launched a special membership promotion that offers 
membership in state chapters (that wish to participate), ALA, and ALTAFF for $100.  The proceeds will be 
divided thusly:   
  ALA receives $41, a discount of 30% over the normal Trustee price of $59 
  ALTAFF receives $36, a discount of 18% over the normal division price of $50 
  Chapter receives $23, a discount of 24% over the national chapter price average of $30. 
In addition, ALTAFF will be working closely with Chapter Relations this fall to promote membership in 
ALTAFF.  This campaign will include articles in state library journals, a number of ads in the larger state 
journals, and promotion of ALTAFF when Chapter Relations displays at state chapter meetings. 
 
 
Membership as of April, 2012: 

  Individual:  1,337 
  Group: 1,783 
 

 

33



 

 
Friends of Libraries U.S.A. 

Ethics Policy 
 

 
Friends of Libraries U.S.A. (FOLUSA) is dependent on the trust of its members, 
sponsors, and partners to successfully achieve its mission.  Therefore, it is crucial that all 
Board members and employees conduct business on behalf of FOLUSA with the highest 
level of probity avoiding any impropriety or the appearance of impropriety.   
 
Guiding Principals: 
 

 Board members and employees should uphold the integrity of FOLUSA and 
should perform their duties impartially and diligently. 

 Board members and employees should not engage in discrimination of any kind 
including that based on race, class, ethnicity, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or 
belief system. 

 Board members and employees should avoid situations in which their personal 
interests, activities or financial affairs are, or are likely to be perceived as being in 
conflict with the best interests of FOLUSA. 

 Board members and employees should avoid having interests that may reasonably 
bring into question their position in a fair, impartial and objective manner. 

 Board members and employees should not knowingly act in any way that would 
reasonably be expected to create an impression among the public that they are 
engaged in conduct that violates their trust as Board members or employees. 

 Board members and employees should not use or attempt to use their position 
with FOLUSA to obtain unwarranted privileges or advantages for themselves or 
others. 

 Board members and employees should not be swayed by partisan interests, public 
pressure, or fear of criticism. 

 Board members and employees should not denigrate the organization or fellow 
Board members or employees in any public arena. 

 
Therefore: 
 
To preserve and uphold FOLUSA’s reputation as an organization of unimpeachable  
integrity, each Board member and employee will sign a “Conflict of Interest” statement 
and an “Ethics Statement” at the beginning of each calendar year (and at the 
commencement of his/her service) during their tenure with FOLUSA. 

34



 

Friends of Libraries U.S.A. 
Ethics Policy, cont. 
 
 
 
Compliance: 
 
If any Board member or the executive director appears to be in conflict of the “Guiding 
Principals” above, he or she will be asked to meet with the executive committee to 
discuss the issue.  The executive committee will make a recommendation to the full 
Board based on their findings.  Employees who are or appear to be in conflict with the 
“Guiding Principals” will be asked to meet with the executive director who will make a 
determination as to discipline or termination based on his or her findings. 
 
 
 

35



R
ev
is
ed

 5
/2
3
/1
2

2
0
1
1
‐2
0
1
2

2
0
1
2
‐2
0
1
3

2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4

2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5

2
0
1
5
‐2
0
1
6

P
re
si
d
en

t
D
o
n
n
a 
M
cD

o
n
al
d

G
ai
l G

u
id
ry
 G
ri
ff
in

R
o
d
 W

ag
n
er

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
V
P
)

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
V
P
)

P
re
si
d
en

t‐
El
ec
t

G
ai
l G

u
id
ry
 G
ri
ff
in

R
o
d
 W

ag
n
e
r

O
P
EN

O
P
EN

O
P
EN

Se
cr
et
ar
y‐
Tr
ea
su
re
r

R
o
d
 W

ag
n
er

To
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
yr
 2
)

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
yr
 3
)

D
iv
is
io
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
lo
r

Su
sa
n
 S
ch
m
id
t

Su
sa
n
 S
ch
m
id
t

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
yr
 2
)

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
yr
 3
)

P
as
t 
P
re
si
d
en

t
R
o
d
 G
au

vi
n

D
o
n
n
a 
M
cD

o
n
al
d

G
ai
l G

u
id
ry
 G
ri
ff
in

R
o
d
 W

ag
n
er

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5

Tr
u
st
ee

 a
t 
La
rg
e

D
o
ra
 S
im

s
D
o
ra
 S
im

s
D
o
ra
 S
im

s
O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 2
)

Tr
u
st
ee

 a
t 
La
rg
e

G
w
en

 G
u
st
er
 W

el
ch

G
w
en

 G
u
st
er
 W

el
ch

G
w
en

 G
u
st
er
 W

el
ch

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 2
)

Tr
u
st
ee

 a
t 
La
rg
e

B
ar
b
ar
a 
P
re
n
ti
ce

D
ia
n
e
 S
ar
an

ta
ko

s
D
ia
n
e 
Sa
ra
n
ta
ko
s 
(y
r 
2
)

D
ia
n
e 
Sa
ra
n
ta
ko
s 
(y
r 
3
)

O
P
EN

Fr
ie
n
d
 a
t 
La
rg
e

R
o
b
in
 H
o
kl
o
tu
b
b
e

R
o
b
in
 H
o
kl
o
tu
b
b
e

R
o
b
in
 H
o
kl
o
tu
b
b
e

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 2
)

Fr
ie
n
d
 a
t 
La
rg
e

M
ar
sh
a 
B
en

n
et
t

M
ar
sh
a 
B
en

n
et
t

M
ar
sh
a 
B
en

n
et
t

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 2
)

Fr
ie
n
d
 a
t 
La
rg
e

K
at
h
ry
n
 S
u
ar
ez

K
at
h
ry
n
 S
u
ar
ez

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
yr
 2
)

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
  3
)

Fo
u
n
d
at
io
n
 a
t 
La
rg
e

Ed
 M

cB
ri
d
e

Ed
 M

cB
ri
d
e

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
yr
 2
)

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 3
)

Fo
u
n
d
at
io
n
 a
t 
La
rg
e

P
et
er
 P
ea
rs
o
n

P
et
er
 P
ea
rs
o
n

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
3
‐2
0
1
4
 (
yr
 2
)

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 3
)

Fo
u
n
d
at
io
n
 a
t 
La
rg
e

G
re
tc
h
en

 H
er
m
an

D
e
b
o
ra
h
 D
o
yl
e

D
eb

o
ra
h
 D
o
yl
e 
(y
r 
2
)

D
eb

o
ra
h
 D
o
yl
e 
(y
r 
3
)

O
P
EN

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
t 
La
rg
e

St
ev
e 
La
ir
d

St
ev
e 
La
ir
d

St
ev
e 
La
ir
d

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 2
)

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
t 
La
rg
e

V
ir
gi
n
ia
 S
ta
n
le
y

V
ir
gi
n
ia
 S
ta
n
le
y

V
ir
gi
n
ia
 S
ta
n
le
y

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 2
)

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
t 
La
rg
e

D
u
st
in
 H
o
lla
n
d

To
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d

To
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d

To
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d

O
P
EN

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
t 
La
rg
e

H
e
le
n
 W

ilb
u
r

G
re
tc
h
en

 H
er
m
an

G
re
tc
h
en

 H
er
m
an

O
P
EN

fr
o
m
 2
0
1
4
‐2
0
1
5
 (
yr
 2
)

G
R
EE
N
 =
 g
o
in
g 
o
ff
 b
o
ar
d

B
LU

E 
= 
re
ce
n
tl
y 
e
le
ct
e
d

R
ED

 =
 o
p
e
n
 f
o
r 
e
le
ct
io
n

P
U
R
P
LE
 =
 t
o
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 b
y 
e
xe
cu
ti
ve

 c
o
m
m
it
te
e

A
LT
A
FF
 B
o
ar
d
 2
0
1
1
‐2
0
1
6

Y
EL
LO

W
 H
IG
H
LI
G
H
T 
= 
o
p
e
n
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
s 
to
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 b
y 
e
xe
cu
ti
ve

 c
o
m
m
it
te
e

36



1May 2010

The Laugh’s On Us, sponsored 
by Playaway  
Sun., June 24, 5:30-7:30 p.m. 
Hilton Anaheim, Pacific C

Comedian 
and ALTAFF 
spokesperson 
Paula Poundstone 
(pictured) will 
headline this 
evening featuring   
writers Carlos 
Kotkin, Tracy 
Macmillan, Julia 

Pandl, Joel Stein, and Lizz Winstead. 
Wine and cheese will be served. A book 
signing will follow. Some books will 
be given away free and others will be 
available for purchase at a generous 
discount. Tickets cost $55 onsite, $49 
advance, $45 ALTAFF members. Event 
code: ALT2 

Gala Author Tea, sponsored by 
ReferenceUSA  
Mon., June 25, 2-4 p.m. 
Anaheim Marriott, Grand Salon E

Bestselling 
writers Selden 
Edwards, Jane 
Green (pictured), 
Andrew Gross, 
Adam Mansbach, 
and Dustin 
Thomason will 
discuss their 
writing life and 

forthcoming books. Enjoy tea, finger 
sandwiches, and a variety of sweet 
treats. A booksigning will follow, with 
some books given away free and others 
available for purchase at a generous 
discount. Tickets cost $55 onsite, $49 
advance, $45 ALTAFF members. Event 
code: ALT1

ALTAFF’s Specialized 
Outreach Services Luncheon 
Sat., June 23, noon-1:30 p.m. 
Anaheim Marriott, Newport Beach 
and Rancho Las Palmas 

Join fellow 
Trustees, Friends, 
and library 
advocates for 
lunch and to 
learn about 
new trends for 
supporting your 
library. Featured 
speakers will be 
ALA Executive 

Director Keith Michael Fiels (pictured) 
and Cheryl Gould of Fully Engaged 
Libraries, whose topic will be “What 
Does it Mean to be a Community 
Anchor?” Tickets cost $60 onsite, $55 
advance. Event code: ALT4

ALTAFF Events
ALA Annual Conference

June 21-26, 2012, Anaheim, Calif.

www.ala.org/altaff        1-800-545-2433, ext. 2161        altaff@ala.org

Nuts & Bolts for Friends, 
Trustees, and Foundations 
Fri., June 22, 9:30 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Hilton Anaheim, Pacific B 
ALTAFF’s popular Nuts & Bolts is jam-
packed to inspire Trustees, Friends, 
and Foundations. Coffee begins at 
9:30 a.m. Speakers will include David 
Levinson, author of Everyone Helps, 
Everyone Wins; Cheryl Gould of Fully 
Engaged Libraries; April Butcher, 
executive director of the Sacramento 
(Calif.) Public Library Foundation; 
Sally Gardner Reed, executive director 
of ALTAFF; Marci Merola, director 
of ALA’s Office for Library Advocacy, 
Lynn Slawsky of the Public Library 
Association, and Deborah Stone from 
ALA’s Office of Intellectual Freedom, 
who will talk about current hot topics;  
Roundtable discussions will be held on 
topics including booksales, fundraising, 
working with your library director, and 
baby boomer volunteers. Lunch is on 
your own. Please RSVP to altaff@ala.
org if you plan to attend.

ALTAFF’s President Program 
featuring Dan Rather 
Mon., June 25, 8:30-9:30 a.m. 
Anaheim Convention Center, Ballroom 
DE 

ALTAFF President 
Donna McDonald 
will welcome 
award-winning 
journalist Dan 
Rather. His new 
book Rather 
Outspoken 
looks back 
over his storied 
and sometimes 
controversial 

career. A book signing will follow.

 
 

To attend ALTAFF 
events at the ALA 
Annual Conference: 
 

If you are with a Friends 
of the Library group, 
Board of Trustees, or 
library Foundation, you 
can attend ALTAFF’s 
nonticketed programs at 
the conference for as little 
as $35 with an Exhibits 
Plus Pass. For more in-
formation, visit www.ala.
org/altaff.  
 
For more information 
about the 2012 ALA An-
nual Conference, visit 
www.alaannual.org. 

37



2 www.ala.org/altaff        1-800-545-2433, ext. 2161

 
ALTAFF meetings: 
 

ALTAFF Nominating
Committee (closed) 
Sat., June 23, 10:30 a.m.-noon 
Hilton Anaheim, Mezzanine 
Room 10
 

ALTAFF Board Meeting 
Sun., June 24, 8-10 a.m. 
Anaheim Convention Center, 
212A

www.ala.org/altaff        1-800-545-2433, ext. 2161        altaff@ala.org

ALTAFF in Action: Leadership 
Training at its Best 
Sat., June 23, 8-10 a.m. 
Hilton Anaheim, Carmel 
ALTAFF members and potential 
members are invited to learn more 
about the organization, how to become 
active, and the resources available 
to members. Topics include an 
introduction to ALTAFF, ALTAFF tools 
of leadership, goals for the year, and 
mechanics of committee involvement. 
Incoming committee members and 
chairs should attend; all are welcome.

First Author, First Book 
Sat., June  23, 8-10 a.m. 
Anaheim Convention Center, 202A 
Join writers for a continental breakfast 
and this event that features first 
time authors Howard Anderson, 
Beth Howard, Bronwen Hruska, Jay 
Caspian Kang, Elizabeth Percer, and 
Beatriz Williams. The program will be 
moderated by Barbara Hoffert, editor 
of Library Journal’s Prepub Alert. An 
author signing will follow. Some books 
will be given away and others will be 
sold at a generous discount.

Historical Fiction @ your 
library 
Sat., June 23, 10:30 a.m.-noon 
Anaheim Convention Center, 202A 
Bestselling authors Regina O’Melveny, 
Gail Tsukiyama, Jeri Westerson, and 
Jean Zimmerman will talk about their 
latest books. The program will be 
moderated by Barbara Hoffert, editor 
of Library Journal’s Prepub Alert. An 
author signing will follow. Some books 
will be given away and others will be 
sold at a generous discount.

Nuts & Bolts for Academic 
Friends Groups 
Sat., June  23, 10:30 a.m.-noon 
Anaheim Convention Center, 205B 
Learn more about starting a Friends 
group in an academic setting and 
participate in idea sharing.

Isn’t it Romantic? 
Sat., June  23, 1:30-3:30 p.m. 
Anaheim Convention Center, 209A 
Love is in the air with this program 
that features bestselling romance 

writers Deborah Coonts, Tessa Dare, 
Jillian Hunter, Susan Mallery, and 
Jill Shalvis. The program will be 
moderated by Barbara Hoffert, editor 
of Library Journal’s Prepub Alert. An 
author signing will follow. Some books 
will be given away and others will be 
sold at a generous discount.

Intellectual Freedom and the 
Library Trustee 
Sat., June 23, 4-5:30 p.m. 
Hilton Anaheim, Capistrano 
This session will help Trustees 
understand the issues and their role 
in defending intellectual freedom. 
Presented by the Public Library 
Association and co-sponsored by 
ALTAFF.

Geek Alert! Your Brain on 
Science and Technology 
Sun., June 24, 10:30 a.m.-noon 
Anaheim Convention Center, 202A 
Join science writers, including Sam 
Kean, Lawrence Joseph, Jonathan D. 
Moreno, and Paul Zak, as they talk 
about their latest books. The program 
will be moderated by Barbara Hoffert, 
editor of Library Journal’s Prepub 
Alert. An author signing will follow. 
Some books will be given away and 
others will be sold at a generous 
discount.

Transforming Libraries 
Through Frontline Advocacy
Sun., June 24, 1:30-3:30 p.m. 
Anaheim Convention Center, 206A 
This advocacy program will feature 
Larry Neal, director of Clinton-
Macomb (Mich.) Public Library, and 
Deborah Doyle, interim executive 

director, Friends & Foundation of the 
San Francisco (Calif.) Public Library. 
Each speaker will discuss frontline 
advocacy for Friends of the Library, 
library Trustees, library Foundations, 
and other advocates.

How Libraries are Serving 
the Evolving Needs of Baby 
Boomers and Older Adults 
Sun., June 24, 4-5:30 p.m. 
Anaheim Convention Center, 201A 
Learn how libraries are reaching baby 
boomers, Presented by the Reference & 
User Services Association’s Reference 
Services Section and co-sponsored 
by ALA’s Office for Literacy and 
Outreach Services, the Public Library 
Association, the Association of 
Specialized & Cooperative Library 
Agencies, and ALTAFF.

Board Governance & 
Development for Trustees, 
Friends, and Foundations 
Mon., June 25, 10:30 a.m.-noon 
Anaheim Convention Center, 209A 
Join this panel discussion to learn 
about board development, succession 
planning, and board governance. 
Panelists will include Sally Gardner 
Reed, executive director of ALTAFF; 
Kathy Gould, director of the Palos 
Verdes (Calif.) Library District; 
Jane Jones, past Trustee and current 
president of the Peninsula Friends 
of the Library (Palos Verdes, Calif.), 
and Debbie Sinclair, president of the 
Friends of the Aliso Viejo (Calif.) 
Library. 

 
Books without Boundaries: 
Crossover Fiction for YAs and 
Adults 
Mon., June 25, 10:30 a.m.-noon 
Anaheim Convention Center, 206B 
This program will feature authors 
Shana Abé, Matt Dembicki, Laura 
Harrington, Kate Locke, Katie 
McGarry, and Maggie Stiefvater. The 
program will be moderated by Barbara 
Hoffert, editor of Library Journal’s 
Prepub Alert. An author signing will 
follow. Some books will be given away 
and others will be sold at a generous 
discount.

38



 20
12

 A
LA

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
A

LT
A

FF
 P

ro
gr

am
s a

nd
 E

ve
nt

s 
Fr

i.,
 J

un
e 

22
 

L
oc

at
io

n 
 

81
96

20
 

9:
30

 a
.m

.-4
 p

.m
. 

N
ut

s &
 B

ol
ts

 fo
r T

ru
st

ee
s, 

Fr
ie

nd
s a

nd
 F

ou
nd

at
io

ns
  

H
ilt

on
 A

na
he

im
, P

ac
ifi

c 
B

 

Sa
t.,

 J
un

e 
23

 
 

81
94

60
 

8:
00

 a
.m

.-1
0:

00
 a

.m
. 

A
LT

A
FF

 in
 A

ct
io

n:
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

t i
ts

 B
es

t 
H

ilt
on

 A
na

he
im

, C
ar

m
el

 

85
94

0 
8:

00
 a

.m
.-1

0:
00

 a
.m

. 
Fi

rs
t A

ut
ho

r, 
Fi

rs
t B

oo
k 

(w
ith

 c
on

tin
en

ta
l b

re
ak

fa
st)

 
A

na
he

im
 C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
C

en
te

r, 
20

2A
 

 
10

:3
0 

a.
m

.-n
oo

n 
A

LT
A

FF
 N

om
in

at
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 (c
lo

se
d)

 
H

ilt
on

 A
na

he
im

, M
ez

za
ni

ne
 R

oo
m

 
10

 

81
96

60
 

10
:3

0 
a.

m
.-n

oo
n 

N
ut

s &
 B

ol
ts

 fo
r A

ca
de

m
ic

 F
rie

nd
s G

ro
up

s 
A

na
he

im
 C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
C

en
te

r, 
20

5B
 

85
96

0 
10

:3
0 

a.
m

.-n
oo

n 
H

is
to

ric
al

 F
ic

tio
n 

@
 y

ou
r l

ib
ra

ry
 

A
na

he
im

 C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r, 

20
2A

 

88
80

0 
N

oo
n-

1:
30

 p
.m

. 
Sp

ec
ia

liz
ed

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
 L

un
ch

eo
n 

(ti
ck

et
ed

; e
ve

nt
 c

od
e 

A
LT

4;
 ti

ck
et

s $
55

 
ad

va
nc

e,
 $

60
 o

ns
ite

) 
A

na
he

im
 M

ar
rio

tt,
 N

ew
po

rt 
B

ea
ch

 
an

d 
R

an
ch

o 
La

s P
al

m
as

 

85
90

0 
1:

30
 p

.m
.-3

:3
0 

p.
m

. 
Is

n’
t i

t R
om

an
tic

? 
A

na
he

im
 C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
C

en
te

r, 
20

9A
 

86
56

0 
4:

00
 p

.m
.-5

:3
0 

p.
m

. 
In

te
lle

ct
ua

l F
re

ed
om

 a
nd

 th
e 

Li
br

ar
y 

Tr
us

te
e 

(p
re

se
nt

ed
 b

y 
PL

A
; c

os
po

ns
or

ed
 b

y 
A

LT
A

FF
) 

H
ilt

on
 A

na
he

im
, C

ap
is

tra
no

 

Su
n.

, J
un

e 
24

 
 

86
00

0 
8:

00
 a

.m
.-1

0:
00

 a
.m

. 
A

LT
A

FF
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

A
na

he
im

 C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r, 

21
2A

 

85
92

0 
10

:3
0 

a.
m

.-n
oo

n 
G

ee
k 

A
le

rt!
 Y

ou
r B

ra
in

 o
n 

Sc
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
  

A
na

he
im

 C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r, 

20
2A

 

88
82

0 
1:

30
 p

.m
.-3

:3
0 

p.
m

. 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g 

Li
br

ar
ie

s T
hr

ou
gh

 F
ro

nt
lin

e 
A

dv
oc

ac
y 

A
na

he
im

 C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r, 

20
6A

 

82
02

20
 

4:
00

 p
.m

.-5
:3

0 
p.

m
. 

H
ow

 L
ib

ra
rie

s A
re

 S
er

vi
ng

 th
e 

Ev
ol

vi
ng

 N
ee

ds
 o

f B
ab

y 
B

oo
m

er
s a

nd
 O

ld
er

 
A

du
lts

 (p
re

se
nt

ed
 b

y 
R

U
SA

_R
SS

; c
os

po
ns

or
ed

 b
y 

A
LA

-O
LO

S,
 P

LA
, A

SC
LA

, 
an

d 
A

LT
A

FF
) 

A
na

he
im

 C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r, 

20
1A

 

85
88

0 
5:

30
 p

.m
.-7

:3
0 

p.
m

. 
Th

e 
La

ug
h’

s O
n 

U
s, 

sp
on

so
re

d 
by

 P
la

ya
w

ay
 (t

ic
ke

te
d;

 e
ve

nt
 c

od
e 

A
LT

2;
 ti

ck
et

s 
$4

9 
ad

va
nc

e,
 $

45
 A

LT
A

FF
 d

iv
is

io
n 

m
em

be
rs

, $
55

 o
ns

ite
) 

H
ilt

on
 A

na
he

im
, P

ac
ifi

c 
C 

39



M
on

., 
Ju

ne
 2

5 
 

81
95

60
 

8:
30

 a
.m

.-9
:3

0 
a.

m
. 

A
LT

A
FF

 P
re

si
de

nt
’s

 P
ro

gr
am

 fe
at

ur
in

g 
D

an
 R

at
he

r  
A

na
he

im
 C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
C

en
te

r, 
B

al
lro

om
 D

E 

81
94

81
 

10
:3

0 
a.

m
.-n

oo
n 

B
oa

rd
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t f
or

 T
ru

ste
es

, F
rie

nd
s, 

an
d 

Fo
un

da
tio

ns
 

A
na

he
im

 C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r, 

20
9A

 

85
98

0 
10

:3
0 

a.
m

.-n
oo

n 
B

oo
ks

 w
ith

ou
t B

ou
nd

ar
ie

s: 
C

ro
ss

ov
er

 F
ic

tio
n 

fo
r Y

A
s a

nd
 A

du
lts

 
A

na
he

im
 C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
C

en
te

r, 
20

6B
 

85
86

0 
2:

00
 p

.m
.-4

:0
0 

p.
m

. 
G

al
a 

A
ut

ho
r T

ea
, s

po
ns

or
ed

 b
y 

R
ef

er
en

ce
U

SA
 (t

ic
ke

te
d;

 e
ve

nt
 c

od
e 

A
LT

1;
 

tic
ke

ts
 $

49
 a

dv
an

ce
, $

45
 A

LT
A

FF
 d

iv
is

io
n 

m
em

be
rs

, $
55

 o
ns

ite
) 

A
na

he
im

 M
ar

rio
tt,

 G
ra

nd
 S

al
on

 E
 

 Fo
r d

et
ai

le
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t p
ro

gr
am

s, 
vi

si
t w

w
w

.a
la

.o
rg

/a
lta

ff.
 

 

40

http://www.ala.org/altaff�

	10 promosheetwithdues.pdf
	joinaltaff010511.pdf
	new member form B.pdf
	member form for Midwinter 11
	new member form A
	altaff_reply form new.pdf


	altaffpromosheet




